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Commissioner of Education to each holder
of an eligible loan or loans. The amount of
such allowance to any holder with respect to
such period shall be a percentage, specified
in such regulation, of the average unpaid
balance of disbursed principal (not Includ
ing Interest added to principal) of all eligi
ble loans held by such holder during such
period, which balance shall be determined as
of the close of such period unless a different
method for determining such balance Is set
forth In such regUlation; but no such per
~entage shall be set at a rate in excess of 3
per centum per annum.

(2) A determination pursuant to para
graph (1) may be made by the Secretary
of Health, Education, and Welfare, on a
national, regional, or other appropriate basis
and the regUlation based thereon may, ac
cordingly. set differing allowance rates for
different regions or other areas or classifica
tions of lenders, within the limit of the
maxl~llmrate set forth In paragraph (1).

(3) For each three-month period with re
spect to which the Secretary of Health, Edu
cation, and Welfare prescribes an Incentive
allowance; the determination required by
paragraph (1) shall be made, and the per
centage rate applicable thereto shall be set,
by promulgatIon of a new regulation or by
amendment to a regulation applicable to a
prIor period or periods.

(4) The Incentive allowance established
for any such three-month period shall be
payable at such time, after the close of such
period, as may be specified by or pursuant
to regulations promUlgated under this Act.

(5) Each regulation or amendment. pre
scribed under this Act, which establishes an
Incentive allowance with respect to a three
month period specified In the regulation or
amendment may, notwithstanding section
505 of the Higher Education Amendments
of 1968, be made effective on the first day
of the first full calendar month which begins
on or after the date of publication of such
regUlation or amendment in the Federal
Register, except that the first such regula
tion may be made effective as soon after the
enactment of this Act as the Secretary de
termines.

(6) The Secretary shall prescribe pro
cedures to the effect that lenders making
loans eligible for an allowance pursuant to
this Act do not. as a condition precedent or
subsequent for making any such loan, reqUire
a student or any member of the stUdent's
family to carry out any business actiVity with
the lender. other than an activity directly
related to the administration and repayment
of such loan.

(7) As used in this Act, the term "eligible
loan" means a loan made after the date of
enactment of this Act and prior to JUly I,
1970, which is Insured under title IV-B of
the Higher Education Act of '1965, or made
under a program covered by an agreement
under section 428 (b) of such Act.

(b) The Commissioner of Education shall
pay to the holder of an eligible loan, at
such time or times as are specified In regu
lations, an Incentive allowance prescribed
pursuant to subsection (a), subject to the
condition that such holder shall submit to
the Commissioner, at such time or times and
In such manner as he may deem proper, such
Information as may be required by regUla
tion for the purpose of enabling the Secre
tary of Health, Education, and Welfare and
the Commissioner to carry out their func
tions under this Act and to carry out the
purposes of this Act.

(c) (1) There are hereby authorized to be
appropriated for incentive allowances as
authorized by this section such sums not
In excess of $15,000.000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, as may be necessary.

(2) Sums available for &xpenditure pur
suant to appropriations made for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1969. under section
421(b) (other than clause (1) thereof) of

the Higher Education Act of 1965 shall be
available for the fiscal year ending June 30,
1970, for payment of Incentive allowances
under this Act. The authorization In para
graph (1) shall be reduced by the amount
made available pursuant to this paragraph.
INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR THE NATIONAL

DEFENSE STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

SEC. 3. Section 201 of the National Defense
Education Act of 1958 is amended by strik
Ing out "$275,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $300,000,000 for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1971" and Insert
Ing In lieu thereof "$325,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1970, and $375,000,000
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".

INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EDUCA

TIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANT PROGRAM

SEC. 4. Section 401(b) of the Higher Edu
cation Act of 1965 is amended by striking
out "$100,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1970, and $140,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1971" and Inserting In
lieu thereof "$150,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $200,000,000 for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".

INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR THE WORK

STUDY PROGRAM

SEC. 5. Section 441(b) of the Higher Edu
cation Act of 1965 Is amended by striking
out "$250,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1970, and $285,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1971" and Inserting in
lieu thereof "$275,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $320,000,000 for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President. I
yield myself 1 minute under the bill.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate go
into executive session to consider the
nominations on the executive calendar.

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consideration of executive
business.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The
nominations on the executive calendar
will be stated.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

The bill clerk proceeded to read sundry
nominations in the Department of Jus
tice.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the nominations
be considered en bloc.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, the nominations are con
firmed en bloc.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

The bill clerk read the nomination of
Louis R. Bruce. of New York, to be Com
missioner of Indian Affairs.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, the nomination is con
firmed.

U.S. TARIFF COMMISSION

The bill clerk read the nomination of
George M. Moore, of Maryland, to be a
member of the U.S. Tariff Commission.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, the nomination is con
firmed.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the President

be immediately notified of the confirma
tion of these nominations.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, it is so ordered.

LEGISLATIVE SESSION

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President. I
move that the Senate resume the con
sideration of legislative business.

The motion was agreed to. and the
Senate resumed consideration of legis
lative business.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING
SENATE SESSION

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that all committees
be authorized to meet during the session
of the Senate today.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, it is so ordered.

EMERGENCY INSURED STUDENT
LOAN ACT OF 1969

The Senate resumed consideration of
the bill (S. 2721) to amend the Higher
Education Act of 1965 to authorize Fed
eral incentive payments to lenders with
respect to insured student loans when
necessa·ry. in the light of economic con
ditions. in order to assure that students
will have reasonable access to such loans
for financing their education.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President. on
time under the bill, equally divided. I
suggest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore, The
clerk will call the roll.

The bill clerk proceeded to call the
roll.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
uaninmous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection. there will be no further
proceedings under the quorum call.

The Chair recognizes the distin
guished Senator from Rhode Island.

PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I ask unani
mous consent that members of the staff
of the Committee on Labor and Public
Welfare who are needed by members of
the committee during the course of de
bate on this bill be permitted to be on
the floor.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. With
out objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, we have be
fore us a measure, S. 2721, Emergency
Insured StUdent Loan Act of 1969. unan
imously ordered reported to the Senate
by the Committee on Labor and Public
Welfare Friday morning. This bill at
tempts to deal with the difficulties being
experienced in full implementation of
the insured student loan program, seem
ingly due to the rising interest rate and
the understandable reluctance of banks
to earmark funds for this program at
the present guaranteed 7-percent level of
return.

Mr. President, last Thursday morning
the Subcommittee on Education met to
hear testimony about the problems being
faced by stUdents who wish to finance
their education through utilization of
the insured student loan program. James
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E. Allen. Commissioner of Education,
succinctly pointed out to us the view of
the Office of Education and the Depart
ment of Health, Education, and Welfare
that the previous high participation in
this program by lenders is being cur
t~\iled. The Department expects a very
difficult period within the next 4 to 6
weeks, for this is not only the time that
students are returning to school, but are
a~tively seeking ways of financing their
education.

The subcommittee then received tes
timony from representatives of the
American Bankers Association, the Na
tional Council of Student Financial Aid
Officers, and the National Council of
Higher Education Loan Programs. The
witness from the American Bankers As
sociation discussed the dilemma faced by
banks, for while they are committed to
this program of tuition assistance, the
high cost of money makes it difficult for
them to maintain the present level of
participation under existing loan pro
grams. Representatives of college-aid
offices generally stated the problem. Mr.
Lee Noel, president, National Council of
Higher Education Loan Programs. esti
mated that between 150,000 and 200,000
students may not be granted loans due
to this difficulty.

During the hearing, the subcommittee
realized that expeditious action would
have to be taken and agreed to have an
informal meeting later in the day. At that
time we discussed the need of some type
of incentive to increase the lenders par
ticipation in the student loan program.
Unanimous agreement was reached on
the form the bill would take and we were
graciously granted permission to have a
short subcommittee executive session to
order the bill to the full committee.

On Friday morning the full committee
met and unanimously reported the bill
and ordered it reported to the Senate. I
ask that the full text of the bill and an
excerpt from the committee report be
printed in the RECORD at this point.

There being no objection, the text of
the bill as reported and the excerpt from
the committee report (No. 91-368) were
ordered to be printed in the RECORD, as
follows:

s. 2721
Be it enacted by the Senate and House of

Representatives of the United States of
America in Congress assembled, That this
Act may be cited as the "Emergency Insured
Student Loan Act of 1969".

INCENTIVE PAYMENTS ON INSURED STUDENT

LOANS

SEC. 2. (a) (1) Whenever the Secretary of
Health, Education, and Welfare determines
that the limitations on Interest or other
conditions (or both) appllcable under part
B of title IV of the Higher Education Act of
1965 (Public Law 89-329) to student loans
eligible for insurance by the Conunissioner
of Education or under a State or nonprofit
prlva.te insurance program covered by an
agreement under section 428(b) of such Act,
considered In the llght of the then current
economic conditions and In particular the
relevant money market, are Impeding or
threatening to impede the carrying out of
the purposes of such part B, he Is hereby
authorized, by regulation applicable to a
three-month period specified therein, to pre
scribe (after consultation with the secretary
of the Treasury and the heads of other
appropriate agencies) an incentive allowance

to be paid by the Commissioner of Education
to each holder of an eligible loan or loans.
The amount of such allowance to any holder
with respect to such period shall be a per
centage, specified in such regulation, of the
average unpaid balance of disbursed prin
cipal (not including interest added to
principal) of all eligible loans held by such
holder during such period. which balance
shall be determined as of the close of such
period unless a different method for deter
mining such balance is set forth in such
regUlation; but no such percentage shaJl
be set at a rate in excess of 3 per centum per
annum.

(2) A determination pursuant to para
graph (1) may be made by the f3ecretary of
Health, Education, and Welfare, on a. na
tional, regional, or other appropriate basis
and the regulation based thereon may, ac
cordingly, set differing allowance rates for
different regions or other areas of classifica
tions of lenders, within the limit of the
maximum rate set forih In paragraph (1).

(3) For each three-month period with re
spect to which the Secretary of Health, Edu
cation, and Welfare prescribes an Incentive
allowance, the determination reqUired by
paragraph (1) shall be made, and the per
centage rate applicable thereto shall be set,
by promUlgation of a new regulation or by
amendment to a regulation applicable to a
prior period or periods.

(4) The Incentive allowance established
for any such three-month period shall be
payable at such time, after the close of such
period, as may be specified by or pursuant to
regulations promulgated under this Act.

(5) Each regulation or amendment, pre
scribed under this Act, which establishes an
Incentive allowance with respect to a three
month period specified In the regulation or
amendment may, notWithstanding section
505 of the Higher Education Amendments of
1968, be made effective on the first day of
the first full calendar month which begins
on or after the date of pUblication of such
regulation or amendment In the Federal
Register, except that the first such regu
lation may be made effective as soon after
the enactment of this Act as the secretary
determines.

(6) The Secretary shall prescribe pro
cedures to the effect that lenders making
loans eligible for an allowance pursuant to
this Act do not, as a condition precedent or
subsequent for making any such loan, re
quire a student or any member of the stu
dent's family to carry out any business ac
tivity with the lender, other than an activity
directly related to the administration and re
payment of such loan.

(7) As used in this Act, the term "eligible
loan" means a loan made after the date of
enactment of this Act and prior to July I,
1970, which is insured under title IV-B of
the Higher Education Act of 1965, or. made
under a program covered by an agreement
under section 428(b) of such Act.

(b) The Commissioner of Education shall
pay to the holder of an eligible loan, at such
time or times as are specified in regulations,
an incentive allowance prescribed pursuant
to subsection (a), mbject to the condition
that such holder shall submit to the Com
missioner, at such time or times and in such
manner as he may deem proper, such infor
mation as may be reqUired by regUlation for
the purpose of enabling the Secretary of
Health, Education, and Welfare and the
Commissioner to carry out their functions
under this Act and to cany out the purposes
of this Act.

(c) (1) There are hereby authorized to be
appropriated for Incentive allowances as au
thorized by this section such sums not in ex
cess of $15,000,000 for the fiscal year end
ing June 30, 1970, as may be necessary,

(2) Sums avallable for expenditure pur
suant to appropriations made for the fiscal
year ending June 39, 1969, under section 421
(b) (other than clause (1) thereof) of the

Higher Education Act of 1965 shall be avail
able for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1970,
for payment of incentive allowances under
this Act. The authorization in paragraph (1)
shall be reduced by the amount made avall
able pursuant to this paragraph.
INCREASED AUTHoRIZAnoN FOR THE NATIONAL

DEFENSE STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

SEC. 3. Section 201 of the National Defense
Education Act of 1958 is amended by strik
ing out "$275,000,000 for the fiscal year end
Ing June 30, 1970, and. $300,000,000 for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1~71" and insert
ing in lieu thereof "$325,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1970, and $375,000,000
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".
INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EDUCA-

TIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANT PROGRAM

SEC. 4. Section 401 (b) of the Higher Edu
cation Act of 1965 Is amended by striking out
"$100,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30. 1970, and $285,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1971" and Inserting in
lleu thereof "$150,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $200,000.000 for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".
INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR THE WORK"

STUDY PROGRAM:

SEC. 5. Section 441 (b) of the Higher Edu
cation Act of 1965 Is amended by striking
out "$250,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1970, a:ld $285,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1971" and inserting in
lieu thereof "$275,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $320,000,000 for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971".

Amend the title SO as to read: "A bill
to increase funds for college student loans
by increasing the authorization of appro
priations for the National Defense Student
Loan Program, and by providing for an in
centive allowance for Insured loans under
title IV-B of the Higher Education Act of
1965 on a temporary basis, and for other
purposes."

PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

The purpose of the bill is to make in
creased funds available for Federal programs
of college student assistance by increasing
the authorization of appropriations for the
national defense student loan program and
by authoriZing emergency incentive pay
ments to eligible lenders under the insured
loan program (title IV-B of the Higher Edu
cation Act of 1965). Such emergency pay
ments are to be temporary in nature.

The blll would authorize the Commissioner
Of Education to make incentive allowances to'
eligible lenders under the insured loan pro
gram in order to encourage such lenders to
make loans to stUdents. These payments
could be made whenever the secretary of
Health, Education, and Welfare determines
that the maximum applicable interest (un
der present law 7 percent per annuJp) on
insured loans, or any other applicable' c.ondi
tlons impede or threaten to impede the car
rying out of the purposes of the insured loan
program. If the Secretary finds that such
conditions do indeed threaten the insured
loan program In the light of current economic
conditions and the particular relevant money
market, he may, by regUlation, prescribe for
a 3-month period an incentive allowance to
be paid by the Commissioner of Education
to holders of insured stUdent loans. Lenders
would be eligible for incentive payments only
for loans made and disbursed after the
enactment of the act and prior to July 1,
1970. In no event could the incentive allow
ance to any holder be in excess of 3 precent
of the average unpaid balance of principal of
all eligible loans held by the holder at the
close of the periOd in question.

The Secretary of Health, Education, and
Welfare would have fleXible authority to set
differing incentive allowance rates for dif
ferent regions or diffrent classifications of
lenders. The Secretary's authority must be
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carried out by regulation. The bill exempts
regulations affecting the' implementation of
the incentive allowance program from a gen
eral requirement of the Otlice of Education
which delays the effective date of regulations
for 30 days after the publlcation in the Fed
eral Register. The blll permits regulations
to have effect upon their promulgation and.
in tlie case of initial regulations. it permits
an effective date upon enactment of the bill.

Paragraph (6) of section 2(a) provides that
the Secretary shalI prescribe procedures to
the effect that lenders making loans
eligible for an allowance pursuant to the act
do not, as a condition precedent or subse
quent to making any such loan, require a
student or any member of the student's
famtly to carry out any business activity with
the lender, other than an activity directly
related to the administration and repaymen~

of such loan. This section was adopted after
careful consideration of the entire question
of baliks making preferred loans.
, An butright prohibition against payments

to lenders who require business activities
other than those related to the loan was
considered. It 'was decided that rather than
risk involving lenders in possible court suits
growing out of a strict interpretation of such
a prohibition a requirement on the part of
the Secretary to regulate this question would
be more appropriate. The committee expects
the Secretary and the Commissioner to carry
out this requirement to the greatest extent
possible under law. The committee takes note
of the fact that subsection (b) of section 2
requires lenders to provide the Secretary and
the Commissioner with such information as
may be required to carry out the purpose
of the act. With this requirement those in
charge of administering the insured loan
program should have sutlicient information
with respect to lending practices under the
program to prohibit preferences under the
insured loan program in favor of the lender's
preferred customers.

The blll would authorize to be appropri
ated for incentive alIowances $15 mUlion for
fiscal year 1970. However, provision was made
for immediate 'ltillzation of unused reserve
funds of the insured loan program to pay
the incentive allowance.

The blll amends title II of the National
Defense Education Act of 1958 (the national
defense stUdent loan program) by increasing
the authorization of appropriations for fiscal
year 1970 from $275 milllon to $325 million
and by increasing the authorization for fiscal
year 1971 from $300 mUllon to $375 million.
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE INSURED LOAN

PROGRAM AND THE NATIONAL DEFENSE STU
DENT LOAN PROGRAM
When the Congress approved the insured

loan program under title IV-B of the Higher
Education Act of 1965, it did so with the
understanding that the insured loan program
would complement the national defense stu
dent loan program but in no way supplant
It. Nevertheless. bUdget requests have rec
ommended decreasing amounts of appropri
ations for the national defense student loan
program. The explanation was offered that
the insured loan program decreased the need
for the direct Federal loan program. In 1966.
the Congress rejected this reasoning by con
tinuing the direct Federal program and in
creasing both the authorization and appro
priation.

The revised bUdget request for fiscal year
1970 contained a recommendation that funds
for direct loans be reduced from $190 million
to $155 million. This reduction in the bUdget
request eVidently caused many colleges to
recommend to students, who were ellgible
for NDEA loans, that they seek insured loans
from private lenders. During the summer
of 1969, during a period of a high prime
interest rate, Increased numbers of students
sought Insured loans.

On July 29, 1969, the administration pro
posed that Incentive allowances be paid to

l:.r.nks in order to encourage lenders to make
loans to college students. This recommenda
tion,in substance, was, with some reluctance,
accepted by the committee in order to per
mit stUdents to go to college this fall. At
the same time the committee expressed its
concern about the future of the national de
fense student loan program and reatlirmed
its belief in such an approach by authorizing
$125 million more over the next 2 fiscal
years.

The committee has received from the De
partment of HEW the follOWing letter by
which the administration atlirms its support
of the committee position:

THE SECRETARY OF HEALTH,
EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,

Washington, D. C., August 8, 1969.
Hon. CLAIBORNE FELL,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Education, U.S.

Senate, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: During the Depart·

ment's testimony before your subcommittee
this morning, a question was raised about
our position on the national defense student
loan program and the relationship between
that program and the guaranteed student
loan program.

I am pleased to confirm Dr. Allen's state
ment that the Department holds the view
that the guaranteed student loan program
is complementary and supplementary to the
natlonal defense student loan program and
is not designed to replace or supplant it. We
understand that this was the intention of
the Congress when the guaranteed loan pro
gram was originally enacted as part B of
title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.
We agree with this intention and cannot
foresee it being altered. I beHeve that our
testimony outlining the different groups
served by the two programs, as well as the
differences in breadth of coverage, further
confirms the view that both programs are
vital and can be fully utllized.

Sincerely,
ROBERT H. FINCH, Secretary.

S. 2721 reflects these concerns of the com
mittee in the following respects:

(1) The authorization for incentive pay
ments is not an amendment to part B of
title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.
This authorization is provided by separate
legislation. The incentive allowance con
cept does not become· a part of the basic
framework of the insured loan program.
Its separateness is intended to denote the
emergency situation we are experiencing and
to provide for separate consideration of the
incentive allowance concept from consider
ation of the insured loan program.

(2) The authorization for incentive al
lowances is temporary and will terminate
with the close of fiscal year 1970, thus assur
ing a review next year, in Ilne with the ad
ministration's promise to file a report on
higher education assistance by the end of
1969.

(3) The bill increases the authorization
for appropriations for the national defense
student loan program. This increase in au
thorization is intended to balance the Fed
eral approach to the current crisis by prOVid
ing for an increased direct loan program.
as well as an amended insured loan program,
and by providing, at this time, an opportu
nlty for increasing appropriations for fiscal
years 1970 and 1971 is also given.

BACKGROUND AND THE NEED FOR LEGISLATION
Since its establishment In the fall of 1965,

the guaranteed loan program has become an
important component of the student aid
program supported by the Federal Govern
ment. In fiscal year 1966, as the program was
being established, the total volume of loans
reached $77 mUllon. In fiscal year 1967, it
reached $248 mUlion; in fiscal 1968, $435 mil
lion; and in fiscal year 1969, $670 m11lion.

Witnesses indicated that we are now con
fronted With the probability of an immediate
drastic reduction in the number and volume

of loans to be made for the school year be
ginning in september. Basically the problems
are that the cost of money has rapidly in
creased in the last 8 months so that now it
greatly exceeds the 7-percent celling per
mitted by the 1968 amendment extending
higher education student assistance pro
grams, and that threatened reductions in the
NDEA loan program have forced many stu
dents who would be eligible for NDEA loans
to seek insured loans. Since the establish
ment of the program the prime rate--that is,
the rate of interest charged by money lend
ers to their most important customers-has
increased five times as follows:

Percent
Dec. 4, 1968 6.50
Dec. 16, 1968 6.75
Jan. 8, 1969 7.00
Apr. 17, 1969 7.50
June 9, 1969 8.50

At the inception of the program late in
1965, lenders were receiving 6 percent simple
interest, or IV. percent above the then-ex
isting prime rate of 4.5 percent. Today lend
ers would receive 7 percent, or 1Yo percent be
low the prime rate.

Witnesses estimated that between 30 and
40 percent of the students who seek a loan
for the first time this fall wlll be denied
help. In numbers, about 150,000 to 200,000
students wlll not obtain an insured loan.

The simplest way to make the program
again attractive to the lender would be to
increase the permitted interest rate, as was
proposed in S.· 2422 and as was done in the
similar situation in 1968. Ditliculties arise
from that course of action. These include-

1. Frozen interest rate level: The present
high interest rate should be regarded as
temporary. As the rate drops, however, the
borrower wouid still be carrying a loan at
the high rate of interest.

2. Problems associated with Federal pre
emption: Many State laws set usury rates at
7 percent. If a Federal rate is set higher it
would have to preemept the SUbject for Fed
eral action. This is undesirable in a coopera
tive program in which 70 percent of the loans
made since enactment of the Higher Educa
tion Act of 1965 are guaranteed by states
and by private nonprofit agencies operating
under State law.

3. High interest rate borne by student:
There is concern about requiring the student
borrower to bear the burden of paying more
than 7 percent.

These ditliculties are avoided by employ
ing an incentive allowance technique:

1. The incentive allowance is immediately
related to the money market and will fiuc
tuate with it on quarterly intervals,

2. Federal law preemption problems are
avoided, and

3. The Federal Government rather than the
student from the lower or middle income
family will bear the loan costs in excess of
7 percent.
INCREASED AUTHORIZATIONS FOR THE EDUCA

TIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANT AND COLLEGE
WORK-STUDY PROGRAMS
The blll increases the authorizations for

two other student assistance programs. The
authorization of appropriations for the edu
cational opportunity grant program would
be increased by $50 million in fiscal year 1970
and $60 mlllion in fiscal year 1971. The au·
thorization for the college work-study pro
gram wouid be increased by $25 million in
fiscal year 1970 and $35 million in fiscal year
1971.

SECTION-BY-SECTION ANALYSIS
Section 1. Short title.-This section pro

\'ides that the act may be cited as the "Emer
gency Insured StUdent Loan Act of 1969."

Section 2. Incentive payments on insured
student loans.-This section authorizes the
Commissioner of Education to pay Incentive
allowances to lenders under the insured loan
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Title IV-Student Assistance
PART A'-EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND APPROPRIATIONS

AUTHORIZED

SEC. 401. (a) It is the purpose of this
part to provide, through Institutions of
higher education, educational opportunity
grants to assist In making available t~ bene
fits of higher education to qualifie~ high
school graduates of exceptional fiIlllnclal
need, who for lack of financial means of
their own or of their families would be un
able to obtain such benefits without such
ald.

(b) There are hereby authorized to be
appropriated $70,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 39, 1966, and for each of the
three. succeeding years, [$100,000,000 for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1970, and
$140,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1971] $150,000,000 for the fiscal yea,.
ending June 30, 1970, and $200,000,000 for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1971 to enable
the Commissioner to make payments to in
stitutions of higher education that have
agreements with him entered into under sec
tion 407, for use by such Institutions fOr pay
ments to undergraduate students for the
Initial academic year of educational oppor
tunity grants awarded t'l them under this
part. There are further authorized to be
appropriated such sums as may be neces
sary for payment to such institutions for

cation at funds for the making of lOW-inter
est loans to students in need thereof to pur
sue their courses of study in such
institutions, there are hereby authoriZed to
be appropriated $47,500,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1959. $75,000,000 for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1:'60, $82,500,000
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1961, $90,
000,000 each for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1962, and the next fiscal year, $125,
000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30,
1964, $163,300,00<' for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1965, $179,300,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1966, $190,000,000 for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1967, $225,000,000
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1968, $210,
000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30,
1969, [$275,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1970, and $300,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1971,] $325,000,000 Jor
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1970, and
$375,000,000 fo" each Of the suceecLing fiscal
years ending June 30, 1971, and there are
further authorized to be appropriated such
sums for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1972,
and each of the next three fiscal years as
may be necessary to enable students who
have received loans for school years ending
prior to July I, 1971, to continue or complete
their education. Sums appropriated under
this section fOr any fiscal year shall be avail
able, in accordance with agreements between
the Commissioner and institutions of higher
education, for payment of Federal capital
contributions Which, together with contribu
tions from the institutions, shall be used for
establishment and maintenance of student
loan funds.

[HISTORY OF LEGISLATION)

(20 U.S.C. 421) Enacted Sept. 2, 1958, P.L.
85-864, Title II, sec. 201, 72 Stat. 1583;
amended Oct. 3, 1961, P.L. 87-344, Title II,
sec. 201 (a), 75 stat. 759; amended Dec. 18,
1963, P.L. 88-210, sec. 22(a), 77 Stat. 415;
amended Oct. 16, 1964, P.L. 88-665, 78 Stat.
1100; amended Nov. 3, 1966, P.L. 89-752, sec.
15, 80 Stat. 1245; amended Oct. 16, 1968, P.L.
90-575, Title I, sec. 171, 82 Stat. 1034; Pro
posed to be amended, S. 2721, sec. 3.

HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF 1965
(P.L. 89-329)

Be it enacted by the Senate and House Of
Representatives of the United States oj
America in Cong,.ess assembled, That this
Act may be cited as the "Higher Education
Act of 1965".

program authorized by part B of title IV at
the Higher Education Act at 1965.

Paragraph (1) of subsection (a) provides
that the Sooretary of Health, Education, and
Welfare determines that the limitations on
interest or other conditions (or both) ap
pUcable under part B of title IV of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 (Public Law 89-329)
to student loans insured by the Commis
sIoner of Education or under a State or non
profit private insurance program covered
under section 428(b) of such act, considered
In the light of the then current ooonomic
conditions and in particular the relevant
money market, are impeding or threatening
to Impede the carrying out of the purposes
of such part B, Is authorized, by regulation
applicable to a 3-month period specified
therein, to prescribe (after consultation with
the Secretary of the Treasury and the heads
of other appropriate agencies) an incentive
allowance to be paid by the Commissioner
of Education to each holder of an eligible
loan or loans. The amount of such allowance
to any holder with respect to such period
shall be a percentage, specified In such reg
ulation, of the average unpaid ba,lance at
principal (not Including interest added to
principal) of all eligible loans held by such
holder, which balance shall be determined
as of the close of such period unless a dif
ferent method for determining such bal
ance 15 set forth In such regulation; but no
such percentage shall be set at a rate in ex
cess of 3 per centum per annum.

Paragraph (2) of subsection (a) authorizes
determinations under paragraph (1) to be
made on a national, regional, or other ap
propriate basis and the regulation based
thereon may, accordingly, set differing al
lowance rates for different regions or other
areas or classifications of lenders, within the
limits of the maximum rate set forth In
paragraph (1).

Paragraph (3) of subsection (a) specifies
that, for each 3-month period with respect
to which the Secretary of Health, Educa
tion, and Welfare prescribes an incentive
allowance, the determination required by
paragraph (1) shall be made, and the per
centage rate applicable thereto shall be set,
by promUlgation of a new regUlation or by
amendment to a regulation applicable to a
prior periOd or periods.

Paragraph (4) of subsection (a) provides
that the incentive allowance established for
any such 3-month pertod shall be payable
at such time, after the close of such periOd,
as may be specified by or pursuant to regula
tions promulgated under the act.

Paragraph (5) of subsection (a) prOVides
that each regulation or amendment, pre
scrtbed under the act, which establishes an
incentive allowance with respect to a 3
month period specified In the regulation or
amendment may, notwithstanding section
505 of Public Law 90-575. be made effective
on the first day of the first full calendar
month which begins on or after the date
of publication of such regUlation or amend
ment in the Federal Register, except that
the first such regulation may be made ef
fective as of the date of enactment of the
act.

Paragraph (6) of subsection (a) requires
that the secretary of Health, Education, and
Welfare prescribe procedures to the effect
that lenders making loans eUgible for an
allowance pursuant to this act do not as
a condition precedent or subsequent for mak
ing any such loan require a student or any
member of the student's family to carry out
any business activity with the lender other
than an activity directly related to the ad
!Illinistration and repayment of such loan.

Paragraph (7) of subsection (a) provides
that the term "eligible loan" means a loan
insured under section 428 of Public Law 89
329, made after the date of enactment ot
the act and prior to July I, 1970, by an eU
gible lender (as defined by subsection (g)
of section 435 of Public Law 89-329) to whom

a regulation under this act applies to the ex
tent that such loan has been disbursed.

Subsection (b) provides that the Commis
sioner shall pay to the holder of an eligible
loan at such time or times as are specified
in regulations an incentive allowance pre..
scribed pursuant to subsection (a) SUbject
to the condItion such holder shall submit
to the Commissioner at such time or times
and in such manner as he may deem proper
such 'information as may be IeqUlred by
regUlation for the purpose of enabling the
Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare
and the Commissioner to carry out their
function, under the act and to carry out the
purposes of the act.

Subsection (c) authorizes to be appropri-.
ated for Incentive allowances as authorized by
this section such sums not in excess of $15
million for the fiscal year ending June 30,
1970. as may be required therefore.

Paragraph (2) of subsection (c) provides
that sums available for expenditurees pur
suant to appropriations made for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1969, under clauses (2),
(3), and (4) of section 421 (b) of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 shall be available for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1970, for pay
ment of incentive allowances under the act.
The authorization In paragraph (1) of sub
section (C) Is reduced by the amount made
available under paragraph (2) of such sub
section.

Section 3. Inc,.eascd autho,.ization jo,. the
national dejense student loan pmgmm.
This section amends section 201 of the Na
tional Defense Education Act of 1958 to In
crease the authorization of appropriations
for the national defense student loan program
from $275 million in fiscal year 1970 and $300
mlIlion in fiscal year 1971 to $325 million in
fiscal year 1970 and $375 m1ll10n in fiscal year
1971.

Section 4. Increase in authOl'ization jor the
educational Oppo,.tunity grant program.
This section increases the authorization of
appropriations for part A of title IV of the
Higher Education Act of 1965 from $100 mU
llon In fiscal year 1970 to $150 million for
such year and from $140 mllIlon for fiscal
year 1971 to $200 million for such fiscal year.

Scction 5. Increase in authorization jor the
college worlc-st1tdy program.-Thls section
Increases the authorization of appropriations
for part C of title IV of the Higher Education
Act of 1965 from $250 milllon for fiscal year
1970 to $257 million for such year and from
$285 mlIIlon for fiscal year 1971 to $320 mll
llon for such fiscal year.

CHANGES IN EXlSTING LAW

In compliance with subsection (4) of rule
XXIX of the Standing Rules of the Senate,
changes in existing law made by the blIl, as
reported, are shown as follows (existing law
proposed to be omitted Is enclosed In black
brackets, new matter is printed in italic, ex
isting law In which no change Is proposed Is
shown In roman) :

NATIONAL DEFENSE EDUCATION ACT OF
1958

(P.L. 85-864)
An act to strengthen the national defense

and to encourage and assist in the expan
sion and improvement of educational pro
grams to meet critical national needs; and
for other purposes
Be it enacted by the Senate and House oj

Representatives oj the United States oj
America in Congress assembled, That this
Act, divided Into titles and sections accord
ing to the following table of contents, may
be cited as the "National Defense Education
Act of 1958".

TITLE II-LOANS TO STUDENTS IN IN
STITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION

APPROPRIATIONS AUTHORIZED

SEC. 201. For the purpose of enabling the
Commissioner to stimulate and assist in the
establishment at Institutions of higher edu-

* * *
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[All figures in millions)

so. I am extremely unhappy about it. Bl
many more Senators have stood in th
Chamber long before me and have bee
just as unhappy but have done their dul
by the Nation. That is how I feel abol
this situation.

I cannot criticize anyone who wish!
to press it. I can only say what the situs
tion is. We will not give relief to 150,OC
to 200,000 or more college students wb
need these loans unless we act now, an
act free of extraneous issues. It is as sim
pIe as that. If we do not do it, the whol
thing can well go down the drain.

I do not say that it will not do any goo
for our young people, because it will d
some good; but it will not do any good:
we are not going to do anything about:
now. when the young people of this COUll
try need the loans, in "iew of the finan
cial interest situation, because of th
high interest rates, when they have to b
given their opportunity to get into un!
versities and colleges of their choic.
That is the issue. It will be raised by ap
propriate amendments, I am sure--

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The tim
of the Senator from New York has ex
pired.

Mr. JAVITS. MI'. President, I yield my
self 1 additional minute.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen

bill with the principal exception of th
two controverted issues which will b
raised here by way of an amendment b.
the Senator from Colorado (Mr. DOMl
NICK). These two issues are. first. a re
striction written in here regarding th
right of a bank to receive its incentive a]
lowance based on whether or not j
makes as a condition of loans the doin
of business with the borrower's family 0
the borrower himself. The second is th
effort to raise the ceiling on three stu
dent aid programs, the National Defens
Education Act loans, the work-study pro
grams, and the educational opportunit
grants. None of these is up for reneWl
this year.

There are ceilings now on all thre
programs. There are budgeted amounl
and appropriations already approved b
the House of Representatives. The onl
question which arises here. for which w
use this bill as the vehicle, is to u
these ceilings. It is a simple and nake
question.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous COIl
sent to have printed in the RECORD
chart which shows the fiscal year 1ge
appropriation. the authorization, tl:
budget-stipulated figure. and tl1
amount appropriated by the other bod:

There being no objection, the materil
was ordered to be printed in the RECORI
as follows:

Fiscal year 1970

$229
154
159

Passed
Hou

0.398
.375
.280

$161.9
154.0
175.6

Estimated
number of

Budgel participanls

1$275
255
(')

Aulhori·
iIalion

$193.4
139.9
124.6

Fiscal
year 1969

appro
priation

I General authorizations also included.
2 $100 for new awards plus continualion cosl

NDEA loans (direct loans al3 percent) _
Work-study _
Education opportunity grants (up to $1,000) _

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President. I believe
one must speak frankly to these matters.
I yield to no one. not to the Senator
from Massachusetts (Mr. KENNEDY) • not
to the Senator from Rhode Island (Mr.
PELL). nor anyone else, in my devotion
to these three programs for which the
ceilings are raised. I am very much in
favor of raising the ceiling. I have
fought in the past and will continue to
fight very hard to raise the ceiling,

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.
ALLEN in the chair>. The time of the
Senator from New York has expired.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President. I yield
myself 1 additional minute.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for I
minute.

Mr. JAVITS. The question, however,
is whether we will go for the form or
the substance. I do not believe a Senator
must vote for a given measure whenever
it is uP. whether timely or not timely,
because he does not want the public
record to show he voted "nay" on a given
occasion. That is why we are here. be
cause we are supposed to have enough
character to do that. when we think that
is the right course.

That is what I had to do in committee,
It went deeply against the grain to do

grant program in fiscal 1970, from $100
million to $150 million and, in fiscal 1971,
from $140 million to $200 million. The
college work-study program would be in
creased from $250 million to $275 million
in fiscal 1970 and from $285 million to
$320 million in fiscal 1971. We propose
this type of authorization increase, so as
to maintain a balance among the var
ious Federal programs of student
assistance.

Mr. President, I th\nk that it can be
honestly stated that members of the
committee from both sides of the aisle
were reluctant to bring this bill to the
Senate for a variety of reasons. However,
our concern about stUdents waiting for
loans is greater still and this vehicle
would appear to meet the need. I urge
the Senate to act favorably on this meas
ure as reported by the committee.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I yield my
self 3 minutes under the bill.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The
Senator from New York is recognized.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President. this is an
administration bill. I introduced it to
gether with 11 cosponsors. in a bipartisan
spirit, with administration support. It is
an emergency matter.

There are two matters I wish to im
press upon the Senate. In the other body.
the Education and Labor Committee has
reported a bill very much like our own

PART C--VVORK-STUDY PROGRAMS

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE; APPROPRIATION

AUTHORIZED

SEC. 441. (a) The purpose of this part is to
stimulate and promote the part-time employ
ment of students, partiCUlarly students from
low-income fammes, in eligible Institutions
who are in need of the earnings from such
employment to pursue courses of study at
such institutions.

(b) There are authorized to be appropri
ated $225,000,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1969, [$250,000,000 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1970, and $285,000,000 for the

.fiscal year ending June 30,1971,] $275,000.000
for the fiscal year ending June 30. 1970. and
$320,000,000 for fiscal year ending June 30.
1971, to carry out this part.

(42 U.S.C. 2751) Enacted Aug. 20, 1964,
P.L. 88-452, Title r, sec. 121, 78 Stat. 515;
amended Nov. 8, 1965. P.L. 89-329, Title IV.
sec. 441 (2), 79 Stat. 1249; amended Oct. 16,
1968. P.L. 90-575, Title r, sec. 131, 132, 133,
82 Stat. 1028-1029. Proposed to be amended,
S. 2721. sec. 5.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, this bill has
two basic thrusts. Our initial approach
to the problem of adequate student fi
nancing establishes a program of incen
tive allowances. Under this provision the
interest rate to the student under the in
sured loan program would continue at
7 percent. However, the Secretary of the
Department of Health. Education, and
Welfare would have an option to take
into consideration the existing fiscal pic
ture and if he found it necessary he would
pay to participating lenders a sum equal
to 3 percent of the outstanding loans
made to students in a set 3-month
period. This formula would meet the
problem of the high cost of money. The
second and very important thrust of the
pending measure which benefits the stu
dents from middle-income families and
students from the lower end of the in
come spectrum. would increase the au
thorization for the national defense
student loan program from the present
$275 million to $325 million for fiscal
year 1970 and from the present $300 mil
lion to $375 million for fiscal year 1971,
The bilI would also increase the authori
zation for the educational opportunity

•

use by them for making educational op
portunity grants under this part to under
graduate students for academic years other
than the Initial year of their educational
opportunity grants; but no appropriation
may be made pursuant to this sentence for
any fiscal year beginning more than three
years atter the last fiscal year for which an
appropriation Is authorized under the first
sentence. Sums appropriated pursuant to
this subsection for any fiscal year shall be
avallable for payment to institutions until
the close of the fiscal year succeeding the
fiscal year for Which they were appropriated.
For the purposes of this subsection, payment
for the first year of an educational oppor-

. tunity grant shall not be considered as an
initial-year payment If the educational op
portunity grant was awarded for the con
tinuing education of a student who had been
previously awarded an educational opportu
nity grant under this part (whether by an
oth&: institution or otherwise) and had re
ceive'd payment for any year of that
educational opportunity grant.

(20 U.S.C. 1061) Enacted Nov. 8. 1965. P.L.
89-329 . Title IV, sec. 401, 79 Stat. 1231;
amend~d Oct. 16, 1968, P.L. 90-575, Title r,
sec. 101,82 Stat. 1017. Proposed to be amend
ed, S. 2721. sec. 4.
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ator from New York is recognized for 1
additional minute.

Mr. JAVITS. I regret terribly that
Members are embarrassed. I am embar
rassed, but we cannot do anything about
it. This is fact, not theory.

Mr. DIRKSEN. Mr. President, will the
Senator from New York yield me 2 min
utes?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield 2 minutes to the
Senator from Illinois.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Illinois is recognized for 2
minutes.

Mr. DIRKSEN. Mr. President, I share
the discomfort of spirit displayed by the
Senator from New York, mainly because
of the $275 million in increased author
ization in the bill.

The reason I am unhappy about it is
that before the presidential party de
parted for California, they read to me a
statement from the White House with re
spect to expenditures; that the President
will remain within the ceiling which has
been imposed upon him by Congress.

If money is authorized and then ap
propliated in excess of that ceiling, there
was a statement-and a very explicit
one-to the effect that it would not be
spent, but it would be reserved, it would
be impounded.

What makes me even unhappier is
that, first of all, we placed a ceiling
upon expenditures to be made by the
Executive, and then we undertake to
kick off that ceiling which we imposed
in the first place. It was done legislatively.

Why do we turn around and remove
the ceiling or nullify it by adding the
additional authorizations, knowing that
the money will not be expended? That
is what I object to. Frankly, I want to
see this thing go to a record vote. If
that is what we are going to do, then,
of course, ignore that expenditure ceil
ing from here on out and have done with
it, because in my book it is a kind of
breach of faith; because the ceiling was
imposed at our instance and not at the
instance of the President of the United
States.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I yield
myself 1 additional minute to reply to
the Senator from Illinois.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for
1 minute.

Mr. JAVITS. By way of facts, I 3hould
like to say to my minority leader that
there is $7,900,000 that is within the
ceiling in already appropriated money.
It was unused in fiscal year 1969 for the
purpose for which it was appropriated.
The provision in this bill makes it avail
able for this purpose. What his criti
cism does apply to is the difference be
tween this $7,900,000 and the $15 mil
lion appropriation which was authorized.
So that the difference is some $7,100,000
that would have to be appropriated.
Therefore, the Appropriations Commit
tee, I might say to the Senator from
Illinois, will be able to determine whether
that can or cannot be implemented with
in the ceiling.

I should like to tell the Senator from
Illinois further, that we did take into
account the situation to which he refers.
I have described the way in which we
hope to deal with it.

Mr. DIRKSEN. I am dealing essentially
with the authorization in the bill. There
are three categories.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator from New York has
expired.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I yield my
self 1 additional minute.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
at:>r from New York is recognized for 1
additional minute.

Mr. DIRKSEN. Mr. President, I
learned from the House that if we com
plicate this bill and it goes to conference,
there will be no bill until October. We
had better make up our minds. Are we go
ing to have a bill 01' are we going to clut
ter it and then have a new bill at a time,
as the Senator from New York has so
well stated, when it will do the most
good?

Mr. JAVITS. I thank my colleague
from Illinois. I am very grateful to the
majority and minority leaders for their
support in this matter. We would not be
here this morning without the unusual
efforts to persuade other Members and to
put this in ahead of the military con
struction bill, if the Senator from Illinois
(Mr. DIRKSEN) and the Senator from
Montana (Mr. MANSFIELD) had not set
their minds to it.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President, will the
Senator from New York yield me 2
minutes?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield 2 minutes to the
Senator from Vermont.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Vermont is recognized for
2 minutes.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President, I wish,
first, to associate myself with the re
marks which have been made by the
distinguished Senator from New York.
All of us who are members of the com
mittee support and subscribe to the
objectives in the bill now before the
Senate.

But we know that if some amend
ments which were offered and approved
by a majority of the members of the
committee are kept in the bill, we will
not have legislation until well into the
fall.

I think it can be taken for granted
that the other body will not approve
the bill in its present form. Those of us
on the committee who feel that that is
true did our utmost to persuade our
colleagues that the amendments should
not be included.

However, we failed in that endeavor.
Thus, I hope very much that we will
support one amendment, particularly,
which I think will be offered by the
Senator from Colorado, and that we will
approve the bill and send it to the other
body so that 150,000 to 200,000 young
Americans will be able to enter college
this fall.

If we fail now, their plight will be a
serious one, indeed.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank my colleague
from Vermont very much indeed.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I yield my
self 2 minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Rhode Island is recognized
for 2 minutes.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, it will be
remembered that we are presently con-

sidering no single amendment but the
bill as a whole. Notwithstanding the ef
fect of passage of the bill in the other
body, we have our job to do.

I think the views of the Senator from
New York are his opinions, but not
necessarily facts. If we go to conference,
and I do not see how we can avoid a con
ference. we may well find the outcome
of the bill, as is so often the case, to
be a compromise, a result of different
views.

It should also be borne in mind that
not too long ago the Senate voted to con
tinue the exemption of education funds
from the budget cuts. The will of the
Senate as read in that vote, would appear
to be that education should not come
within the budget cut.

Finally, while recognizing that the bill
can be simpler without the addition3 to
it, the additions give balance to the bill,
so that it does not look exclusively like
a monetary bill, nora middle-class relief
bill, but provides a balanced approach.
For that reason, as chairman of the sub
committee, I will !;upport the bill as re
ported.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I yield my
self 30 seconds.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for
30 seconds.

Mr. JAVITS. Let me say to the Sen
ator from Rhode Island and to his col
leagues, whoever they may be who are
offering amendments, that I find no fault
with them. I do not criticize them.

The Senator from Rhode Island is
absolutely right about the fact that this
is my opinion regarding what may hap
pen to this bill after it receives Senate
approval.

On the contrary, the Senator from
Rhode Island is entitled to the thanks
of the whole Senate and the country for
the expertise and skill he has brought to
this matter in the bill at the present
moment.

I stated what I thought were my views
as to what was the best thing to do in a
given emergency situation. Of course, the
Senate will work its will. I pledge my
self, as the ranking minority member
and I will undoubtedly be a conferee if
we must go to a conference-diligently
to pursue whatever the Senate may de
cide and to do my utmost to bring it
into law. " .

Thus, I honestly feel that if we .pass
the bill without these additions, it is. very
likely to be accepted, and a conference on
it would be really pro forma, very mUCh,
let us say, on a 50-50 basis.

This is only my personal opinion, but
as a Senator it is my duty to state this
opinion to the Senate in order to in
fluence my colleagues to do what I think
will do the most good for the purposes of
the bill.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President. Is there any
amendment to be offered to the bill?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. No
amendment has yet been offered.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I send
an amendment to the desk.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk
will state the amendment.

The BILL CLERK. The Senator from
Colorado (Mr. DOMINICK) proposes an
amendment, on page 7, to delete lines 11
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through 17 and renumber succeeding
sections--

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that further reading
of the amendment be dispensed with.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

The language proposed to be stricken is
as follows:

(6) The Secretary shall prescribe proce
dures to the effect that lenders making loans
eligible for an allowance pursuant to this
Act do not, as a condition precedent or sub
sequent for making any such loan, require
a student or any member of the student's
family to carry out any bUsiness activity with
the lender, other than an activity directly
related to the administration and repayment
of such loan.

Mr: DOMINICK. Mr. President, we
have" II1n hour of divided time on the
amendment. I yield myself 15 minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Colorado is recognized for 15
minutes..

Mr. DOMINICK. I am a cosponsor of
the basic bill S. 2721. The amendment I
now offer would strike subsection 6 on
page 7, a provision which was introduced
by Senator KENNEDY in the full commit
tee executive session and added to the bill
by a rollcall in the committee of 10 to 6.

Mr. President, I think it is only proper
for me to point out that I have been serv
ing on the Education Subcommittee for
5 years. I have enjoyed it. I have helped
to develop and have supported many
proposals on behalf of aid to students in
order to give them a better opportunity
for education. I intend to continue. It is
for that very reason that I am offering
this motion today.

Mr. President, the subcommittee held
a public hearing last week on our bill,
S. 2721, the Emergency Student Loan
Act of 1969. At that hearing we had testi
mony from the Senator from Indiana
(Mr. BAYH) and the Senator from Ver
mont (Mr. PROUTY); Mr. Allen, Com
missioner of Education, who was ac
companied by the Chief of the Insured
Loans Branch of DE, the Assistant Com
missioner for Legislation, and a repre
sentative of the Bureau of Higher Edu
cation.

We heard testimony from Mr. Alexan
der, president of the American Bankers
Association,

We heard Mr. Purdy, President of the
National Student Financial Aid Council,
accompanied by Mr. Wohlreich, director
of admissions and financial aid, Com
munity College of Philadelphia, Pa.

We heard from Mr. Noel, president of
the National Council of Higher Educa
tion Loan Programs, Deerfield, Ill. Mr,
Noel was accompanied by Mr. Broadway,
executive secretary of the North Caro
lina State Education Assistance Author
ity, Mr. Payton, executive director of the
Georgia Higher Education Assistance
Corporation, and Mr. Petrie, executive
director of the Louisiana Higher Educa
tion Assistance Commission, Baton
Rouge, La,

Everyone of these witnesses supported
our basic bill, S. 2721. They supported
the need for prompt action, pointing out
that at this period of time-August, Sep
tember-the student:: turn to banks and
other lenders for loans to finance their
education.

Unless we take action to correct the
financial situation in the current mar
ket, students will continue to have great
difficulty in getting loans. Therefore, I
had hoped our original bill, devoted ex
clusively to the emergency situation for
insured loans and unencumbered by
amendments dealing with other subjects
could be passed as expeditiously as pos
sible.

The need for our bill has been brought
home to almost every Senator in this
body, by letters or telephone calls from
people in their home States. Students
are reporting how difficult it is to get
money under the present situation, when
the ceiling under the guarantee loan
fund is 7 percent and when the going
market rate throughout the country is
higher than that, ranging from 8Y. per
cent on up.

Financial institutions, with a minimum
of free capital for lending purposes, find
themselves in a position of having to
allocate their resources among proposed
borrowers. This is a perfectly normal
business reaction. No one likes the high
interest rates and tight money. As a mat
ter of fact, our financial institutions are
borrowing "Euro" dollars at 10 percent
in order to have funds available to lend
in this country. This situation exists now.

What the Senator from New York, the
Senator from Vermont, I, and other
Senators are trying to do with our bill
is to provide an incentive to banks and
other lenders so they will go ahead with
the student loan program. It is a care
fully worded provision. It permits the
Secretary of HEW and the Commissioner
or Education to make incentive allow
ances, determined on a quarterly basis,
to cover the difference between the 7 per
cent ceiling and the market rate. The
Secretary's authority would be flexible
so he could set different rates for various
regions or classifications of lenders, but
the incentive could not exceed 3 percent.

During the subcommittee hearing, not
one word was said about the Kennedy
amendment which is now in the form of
subsection 6. His proposed restriction was
not offered or even mentioned until after
the hearing was over. It was flrst raised
later at the subcommittee markup. That
proposal was subsequently withdra\\'n
and the subcommittee approved the pro
posal of the Senator from New York
(Mr. JAVITS) which dealt with the issue
by adding a preamble to the bill.

Mr. EAGLETON. Mr. President, will
the Senator yield?

Mr. DOMINICK. I will yield if the
Senator will just let me finish this point.
The Javits preamble read as follows:

STATEMENT OF POLICY
SEC. 2. It Is the sense of the Congress In

enacting this Act that lenders making loans
eligible for an allowance pursuant to this
Act shOUld not. as a condition for making
any such loan, require a student or any mem
ber of the student's family to carry out any
business activity with the lender other than
an activity directly related to such loan.

The Education Subcommittee approved
this as a statement of policy. Then, all of
a SUdden, we were faced with the Ken
nedy statutory restriction in the full
committee. I was present for the entire
hearing and I am not aware of any dis
cussion of proposals to change the law in
this respect.

Now I am happy to yield to the Senator
from Missouri.

Mr. EAGLETON. I would like to put
this question to the Senator from Colo
rado, directing attention to the printed
hearing dated August 7, 1969, page 23, the
testimony of Commissioner Allen, next to
the last full paragraph on that page:

We have been advised by many lenders who
participated heavily in the 1968-69 program
that their activity at the 7 percent rate must
either be halted entirely or restricted to
children of favored customers, on the grounds
that they are unable to "break even" in the
current market.

I repeat-"restricted to children of
favored customers."

Second, I call the Senator's attention
to page 39 of the same hearing, the state
ment by the Senator from Texas (Mr.
YARBOROUGH). I shall not bother to read
it all, it consumes about half of page 39,
but the Senator talks about calls, letters,
different communications he has had
from people back in the State of Texas
relating to the fact that in order to avail
themselves of the provisions of this
act---

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, does
the Senator ask to have additional time?
I yielded for a question.

Mr. EAGLETON. I ask my question:
Is not that testimony some indication in
the printed record that there is a prob
lem here?

Mr. DOMINICK. Absolutely, there is a
problem here. No one denies it. The pur
pose of our bill is to get at that problem.
When students apply for loans under a
program with a ceiling of 7 percent and
the market rate is higher than that,
lenders are going to allocate resources
among customers. That is obvious. That
is the reason for the incentive in our bill,
to relieve the economic pressure for such
allocations. I have no doubt as to what
Commissioner Allen said or what the
Senator from Texas (Mr. YARBOROUGH)
said or what the Senator from Missouri
said. This does not alter the fact that no
proposal to change the law had been
offered or mentiond, nor was there any
testimony on the effect of such a change.
The first substantive comment on it from
a witness appears in the letter from the
American Bankers Association, a copy of
which is on each Senator's desk at the
present time.

The point I am making is that if we
are united in trying to provide oppor
tunities for more students to get more
loans from more lenders, it makes no
sense to put restrictions on the lenders
so that they will not participate. It is a
purely voluntary program, and if lenders
will not participate, the students are net
going to get the loans.

What happens in this particular situa
tion? No lender knows what the amount
of its incentive will be until after it has
gone through a quarter of a year. Then
the Secretary decides. on the total port
folio of any lender, what incentive should
be granted to equalize between the 7
percent and the going rate.

If the restriction remains, it casts
doubt on any loan that a lender may
make to any stUdent. The lender may
suddenly find himself, after making these
loans, getting no incentive; and, al
though he is trying to go along with Ul.'~!;,,!"l.il
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program, find himself penalized in com
parison with others.

What is the lender likely to do when
confronted with such a problem? He will
say, "This is too much. We have plenty
of other problems, without getting into
the uncertainties involved in this pro
gram. We will not participate." This, of
course, makes it even more difficult to
have money available for the students.

I ask unanimous consent to have
printed in the RECORD a letter to me from
the American Bankers Association, dated
August 11, 1969, signed by Willis W.
Alexander, president. Copies of that let
ter have been placed on Senators' desks,
and I hope that senators will look at it.

There being no objection, the letter was
ordered to be printed in the RECORD, as
follows:
THE AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION,

New York, August 11, 1969.
Hon. PETER H. DOMINICK,
U.S. Senate,
Old Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR DOMINICK: I am writing you
with reference to S.2721 and the Committee
amendment adopted in Sec. 2 (a) (6).

The students who need loans to enter col
lege next month 'are not served by creating
further delays on program modifications.
During the past several months banks have
found it necessary to ration all credit-in the
.student loan area as well as in other areas of
banking. Past banking relationships provide
a normal and understandable basis for such
jUdgments by many banks and their cus
tomers. I am aware of no case in which fu
ture business relationships have been made
a condition precedent to such loans.

The purpose of S. 2721 is to provide an In
dication that Congress recognizes that these
loans need some t1exiblllty in rate to provide
a breakeven position under varying money
cost conditions. The bill contains no assur
ances beyond the first quarter of any specific
market adjustment allowance. Acceptance of
this assurance by a bank in making the loan
is an act of faith. To complicate this environ
ment by the amendment will not, in my
jUdgment, encourage expansion of the guar
anteed student loan program which is a vol
untary commitment on the part of each bank
or other lending institution.

Sincerely,
WILLIS W. ALEXANDER.

Mr. DOMINICK. In referring to the
rider added to the bill in committee,
Mr. Alexander concludes:

To complicate this environment by the
amendment wlll not, in my judgment, en
courage expansion of the guaranteed stu
dent loan program which is a voluntary com
mitment on the part of each bank or other
lending institution.

Mr. President, in the hope that I can
persuade some of my colleagues on the
point I am making, I shall read at this
point a few paragraphs from the hearing
record. Mr. Alexander, the president of
the American Bankers Association, who
signed the letter to which I have just
referred, testified as follows:

The appeal of the guaranteed stUdent loan
program arises from the mUltiplier effect
achieved through a guarantee and interest
subsidy approach as opposed to direct Gov
ernment aid. Many more students may be
benefited through this partnership with the
private sector than can be assisted with an
appropriation of the same amou:J.t through
the direct programs such as National De
fense loans, Economic Opportunity grants
and Work-StUdy grants.

On that· same point, the Commissioner
of Education, Mr. Allen, said:

But looking to the National Defense Stu
dent Loan Program to prOVide loans for
these students is not appropriate for two
major reasons-cost to the government and
availability to students. First of all, the
cost tQ the government for NDEA loans
is substantially greater. At a 90 percent con
tribution ratio, $200 million in NDEA loans
would cost $180 million. On the other hand,
$200 million loaned under the Guaranteed
Loan Program would cost $6.5 million for
the 7 percent interest SUbsidy and an extra
$2.6 million if a market adjustment allow
ance of 2 percent were paid for the year.
ThUS, tD loan $200 million to students, the
comparative cost to the government in Fis
cal Year 1970 would be $180 million for
NDEA and $9.1 million for the Guaranteed
Loan Program.

We must also remember that many stu
dents who could obtain guaranteed loans do
not meet the needs test for National Defense
loans. Those who would qualify might be in
eligible because their school did not partici
pate. While apprOXimately 2,000 schools par
ticipate in the National Defense Student
Loan Program, more than 7,000 schools are
eligible under the Guaranteed Loan Pro
gram. This 7,000 includes more than 3,000
vocational schools and more than 400 foreign
schools.

So, Mr. President, we are talking about
not only 4-year higher educational in
stitutions, but junior colleges, vocational
schools, and foreign schools.

In the booklet pUblished by the Office
of Education entitled "Financial Aid for
Higher Education," there appears on
page 28 the following statement describ
ing the guaranteed loan program:

In all cases, your key to obtaining a guar
anteed loan lies in your finding a bank or
other lender willing to make the loan.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator's time has expired.

Mr. DOMINICK. I yield myself 4 addi
tional minutes.

The statement continues:
You then apply directly to the lender, and

the SUbsequent approval by the appropriate
guarantee agency should be no problem.
Since the lender has no contractual obliga
tion to make a loan to you, however, you may
have to try several sources. Visit the lenders
in your area personally if at all possible. If
you continue to have difficulty in obtaining
a loan, the guarantee agency listed for your
State may be able to advise you.

"Advise you," not "get you a loan," be
cause this is a purely voluntary program.

So, to the extent that we restrict the
ability of banks or other lenders to make
these loans, or cast doubts on the ques
tion of whether they would get the bene
fit of the incentive-which is the only
thing that would bring them up to the
market rate-to that extent we are re
stricting the availability of funds for
students who want to further their edu
cation; and it seems to me that for that
reason we should strike the rider to the
bill.

Granted none of us are happy with
all of the things that go on in the process
of the student trying to get a loan.

But in examining the urgency of the
situation, and the diffiCUlty in getting ap
proval by the House of Representatives
before Congress goes into recess, I think
it is extremely unfortunate that this
rider and others have been added to
the bill.

Mr. President, I reserve the remainder
of my time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, will the
manager of the bill yield me 10 minutes?

Mr. PELL. I yield 10 minutes to the
Senator.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
Chair recognizes the Senator from Mas
sachusetts for 10 minutes.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, there
are certain facts which I think ought to
be established at the outset of this de
bate, and that is the procedure which
has been initially followed by the Edu
cation Subcommittee.

I do not think any of us disputes the
fact that there is a situation of urgency
about this legislation. The committee
has acted in an urgent way. I do not find
any fault with that, but I think that it
is a misinterpretation, or at least is un
justified, to suggest that we had a great
period of time to consider either this
legislation or any potential amend
ments. As a matter of fact, on this. bill
hearings were held on the morning of
one day, we had an executive session of
the subcommittee that afternoon, and
the matter was considered by the full
committee the following morning. So
wh~t we are really talking about is a
period of approximately 36 hours, which
was the total time available to members
of the subcommittee and of the full com
mittee to take whatever action they felt
was necessary to adjust and perfect the
legislation.

All of us as members of that commit
tee were acting under a sense of ur
gency.

Second, Mr. President, in the com
mittee-prepared draft there was lan
guage-and I have the committee draft
that was available to all other members
of the subcommittee-which brought up
this whole subject which we are debat
ing this morning. Although that lan
guage which was stated in the draft
worked out by majority and minority
staff-and all of us recognize it as a staff
report-it was a good deal harsher, less
explicit, and more punitive than later
suggestions. I felt, therefore, that it
failed to l'each the legitimate aims of
those of us on the committee who were
attempting to meet what I think is an
important need. These objections\ were
raised by the distinguished senior.,Sen
ator from New York (Mr. JAVITS)', and
it was in this exchange and discussion
that we were hopeful that language
could be prepared which would be suffi
ciently agreeable to those who were con
cerned about this problem and to our
friends on the other side of the aisle. We
sought suggestions which could be
adopted in the full committee. And we
asked and instructed our staffs to try to
arrange this and make recommenda
tions to the fUll committee in the morn
ing.

I for one certainly reserved my right
to raise any language in the full body
of the legislation. I think the record
will show it. Certainly the members of
the committee that were present would
understand it. And even If I had not,
that right would be reserved to any
Member of this body.
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Mr. PELL. Mr. President, will the

Senator yield?
Mr. KENNEDY. I yield.
Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I would like

to corroborate that statement. I remem~
bel' that the senior Senator from Mas
sachusetts 'was quite unhappy with the
language we were working on. He grum
bled and said that he would reserve his
right to, and quite likely would, raise it
later.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, as im
portant or as unimportant as the pro
cedures in which we find ourselves today,
I think it is significant to know that this
problem has been raised and is raised
again before the Senate today. The
Members of the Senate can look through
€he series of letters which are printed
il\ the full report and see this question
beIng raised by students and by deans
and by financial officers alike.

I. refer to a letter from Laurence
Arnold, who is a student in Colorado, to
the Department of HEW-and lam just
quoting one line as the letters them
selves will be printed in the RECORD
he states:

In two instances, I was told that there was
some money left-

Referring to this provision-
but it was only available to established
customers of the bank.

I refer to a letter by Pierre Meyer, who
is a dean of students at the University
of Minnesota. He said:

At the present time, banks are only accept
ing loans for students who have been long
term customers.

That is a part of the record.
I refer to Thomas Burch, who is the

vice president of the United Student Aid
Funds, who said:

In many institutions and areas, service is
limited to customers, and in some, to no
loans at all.

I refer as well to the exchange that
was mentioned earlier by the distin
guished Senator from Missouri between
the Chairman of the full committee, the
Senator from TEXAS (Mr. YARBOROUGH),
and Mr. Simmons. Mr. Simmons is the
chief of the insured loans branch. Sen
ator Yarborough said-and I read now
from page 39 of the hearing record:

If banks play a role in providing students
assistance, shOUldn't they offer that asslst
,ance across the board? These are guaranteed
loans by the Federal Government to all
comers who qualify and not just children or
preferred customers or children of somebody
that they know.

Mr. Simmons replied:
We had so many of the banks, inclUding

your state and others throughout the coun
try, taking pretty much not everybody that
walked in the bank but they are taking that
stUdent who had ties to that banle

I think in the past year, and partiCUlarly
since January, more and more of what you
say. this crC€ping in of the requirements that
they be a customer, they be a good customer,
they be a senior or a junior. at least they have
a contract relationship for up to 5 years.

Mr. President, I think that in the lim
ited time the committee was able to con
sider the whole broad spectrum of the
guaranteed loan-which I support-

there was a demonstrated need to try to
remedy this kind of a problem. There
fore, the committee tried in its initial
language-which, as the distinguished
Senator from New York pointed out,
was inadequate and, I think, failed to do
the job and was punitive in so many
ways-to develop three or four different
kinds of alternative language to meet
that need.

Those alternatives were discussed at
some length in the full committee, and
eventually we came to the language
which was included in the bill now which
says:

The Secretary shall prescribe procedures-

And when it was initially proposed, it
said:
to assure that the lenders making loans
eligible for an allowance pursuant to this
Act do not-

And we changed that at the advice of
the distinguished Senator from New
York (Mr. JAVITS) to say:

The Secretary shall prescribe procedures
to the effect that lenders making loans eligi
ble for an allowance pursuant to this Act
do not, as a condition precedent or subse
quent for making any such loan, require a
student or any member of the !student's
family to carry out any business activity with
the lender, other than an activity directly
related to the administration and repayment
of such loan.

Mr. President, we fully realize that it
is going to be a question of discretion
as to what a bank is going to do when
providing a loan to a student. We know
that there is nothing which we can pro
ceed to do in legislation to require that
a particular bank will give a loan to a
certain student. Wide latitude and wide
discretion would be available. What we
have tried to do here, Mr. President, is
just provide that the Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare-and he has
broad latitude in this area, broad fleXi
bility, and broad discretion-will be able
to prescribe recommendations and pro
cedures to give that kind of assurance so
that these students will not be denied
the opportunities to participate in this
program just because their families are
not doing business with those banks.

We think that that is a worthy aim in
providing this legislation. We think that
it is sufficiently important that it should
not be just included in a policy state
ment in the preamble of the legislation,
but should carry the importance of sub
stantive language in the bill. That is why
that requirement is in the legislation.
We feel that it provides a fleXibility and
a discretion. There is nothing in this lan
guage in and of itself, Mr. President, that
will provide for a mandatory cutoff or
that should discourage any bank from
being willing to participate in this pro
gram. We think that it does obviously
meet the need which has been estab
lished in this record from the testimony
and the statements of others.

Finally, Mr. President, we feel that the
loan program, as important and as sig
nificant as it is in helping and assisting
the children of middle-income America,
should not be barred from providing
help and assistance to those from lower
incomes who, because of a family limita-

tion, might not be doing business with
the bank. For those reasons this amend
ment was introduced.

Mr. President, I reserve the remainder
of my time.

Mr. PELL. What the Senator from
Massachusetts was endeavoring to do
was to not let an account be a precedent
for the granting of a loan.

Mr. President, I yield 5 minutes to the
Senator from Minnesota.

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.
GRAVEL in the chair). The Senator from
Minnesota is recognized for 5 minutes.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, there is
no question that the guaranteed or in
sured student loan program is a much
needed and exceedingly successful pro
gram, and I urge the Senate's immediate
and favorable consideration of the In,;,
sured Student Loan Emergency Amend
ments of 1969 as reported by the Com
mittee on Labor and Public Welfare.
These amendments are urgently needed
to provide college opportunities to some
200,000 students who are presently un
able to obtain loans.

As we know, the prime interest rate is
now SY2 percent, with installment loan
interest rates scaled upward from the
prime rate. The problem for students and
their families seeking guaranteed stu
dent loans from lenders, normally com
mercial banks, thus is very easily stated:
the student loan is now limited by
statute to 7 percent simple interest rate
and is therefore not competitive with
the other kinds of loans that these lend
ers can make.

The ccmmittee reported bill would al
low the Secretary of Health, Education,
and Welfare to prescribe an incentive al
lowance or subsidy to be paid to the lend
ers based upon current market condi
tions, and would provide that lenders
could not discriminate among loan ap
plicants for this program on the basis of
whether or not they or their parents had
savings accounts with them. The advan
tage of this procedure is threefold: it
would allow the student to continue bor
rowing from the insured student loan
program at a fixed rate of 7 percent while
at the same time provide the Govern
ment with a flexible program, avoiding
locking either the Government or the
student into exorbitant high interest
rates. It would prohibit continuation of a
discriminatory policy being used by some
lenders which required an applicant to be
a preferred customer-someone with a
savings account or mortgage-in order to
qualify for an insured student loan. Most
important, of course, is the fact that it
would "reopen" the program for students
who have been unable to receiye loans to
attend colleges, universities, and post
secondary vocational schools this fall.

This program, authorized by the
Higher Education Act of 1965, has de
veloped from a $77 million program in
fiscal year 1966 to a $672 million '"lrogram
in fiscal year 1969. Planned as a financial
aid program for students primarily from
middle-income families, the program had
approximately 730,000 stUdents on loans
this past fiscal year alone.

I ~lieve, Mr. President, that this pro
gram shOUld be made immediately avail
able to the more than 200,000 students
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who are now in desperate need of these
loans. In addition, I want to state my
full support of the amendments to the
bill which would authorize increased au
thorizations-totalling $125 million this
year-for the educational opportunity
grant program, the college work-studY
prog~'am, and the national defense stu
dent loan program. These programs
particularly the educational opportunity
grant program-provided vitally needed
assistance to low-income students, who,
without this aid, would be unable to re
ceive postsecondary education.

I ask unanimous consent that repre
sentative correspondence from my
State concerning the insured student
loan program be printed at this point in
the RECORD.

There being no objection, the corre
spondence was ordered to be printed in
the RECORD, as follows:

BRAINERD, MINN.}
June 19, 1!J69.

Senator WALTER F. MONDALE,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: We hMe a son who
is in his third year of a pre-med course in
college. Karl has had better than a 3.75 aver
age for three years-two at the Brainerd Jun
ior College, and one year at Miami University
at Oxford, Ohio. My husband is an elementary
teacher in the Brainerd School system, and
on his salary, we just are not able to help Karl
very much With his college expenses. In the
past, Karl has earned most of his college ex
penses at the Minnesota Conservation De
partment, working summers. This summer
he is attending the University of Minnesota
summer school and is unable to earn money
for next year's expenses.

The First National Bank of Brainerd is the
local bank designated to grant federally as
sured loans. Karl talked to the banker about
securing this type of loan and was told that
because we were not customers, he could not
be granted the loan.

The only banking that we do is to have a
personal checking account, since we have
no mortgages, loans, or savings account.
When I told the banker this, he told me the
bank doesn't· make any money on a check
ing account, and therefore he doubted if
the bank directors would grant the loan.

I would appreciate any help or information
you could give me on how to secure a loan
of this type for our son.

Most sincerely,
Mrs. CLARENCE E. MOLSTAD.

TECHNICAL EDUCATION CENTER,
Anoka, Minn., August 5,1969.

Senator WALTER F. MONDALE,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.:

We are quite concerned about what is
happening to the Guaranteed Loans for stu
dents entering post-high programs, especial
ly here at Anoka Area Vocational Technical
Center.

We would appreciate anything you could
possibly do to alleviate this condition. Most
students that would like to go on to fur
ther their tra.1ning are finding it very, very
dillicult to borrow funds.

Also we would appreciate any help on your
part in supporting any educational programs
and funds for students, programs, and
faculty. We also understand funds and re
imbursement for vocational programs and
for vocational counselors wlll be cut. We
feel we are providing training and help to
many students that are not college-bound or
students who leave college because of d.1sap
polntment but still they all need training.
There are a lot of employment skllls not
provided by college but are st1ll in great de-

mand. It is estimated that only lout of 5
high school students go on to college, the
others need training to have saleable skllls
to ga.1n worthwhile and productive jobs.

We again would appreciate any and all
help you can give.

PAUL BUZAY,
Counselor.

TECHNICAL EDUCATION CENTER,
Anoka, Minn., July 28, 1969.

Senator WALTER l\!ONDALE,
U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.:

This letter is intended to get your support
for tl:.e Guaranteed Student Loan program.
It seems that all money for this program is
being withheld by lending institutions be
cause of the lower interest rates on these
loans.

We at the Anoka Technical Education
Center certainly are puzzled by the attitude
of Congress and the Administration in not
providing some alternatives for students
seeking these loans. Something needs to be
done immediately for many of our students
who are seeking financial aid for the coming
Echool term.

We are very interested in your views on
this matter. It seems that you have been a
strong advocate of educational assistance In
the past and we hope you can provide leader
ship in solving this vital problem.

JOHN HEIDGERKEN,
Counselor.

MANKATO, MINN.
Senator WALTER MONDALE,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SIR: My husband is a married student.
We have three chllden ages being 15, 14, 8.
The enclosed article may cause my husband
to have to quit school, even though he is close
to graduation.

He applied for a student loan a month or
so ago at Northwestern National Bank of
Mankato. He was told that they no longer
have student loans. There was no money in
it for them. Naturally this forced him to
borrow at a much higher rate of interest. If
we must continue to do this untll next March
(when he plans to get his B.S. Degree in
Chem. and Bio), I hate to think how long it
wlll be before we can get on our feet again.
Men the age of Wilfred (40) need a lot more
than courage and guts to drop everything
and go back to school full time, especially
with the responsiblllties of supporting a
family of this size.

Perhaps you wonder Why we are in this
great but ditficult Undertaking....

Wllfred was born and raised on a farm
near Blue Earth. It was an expected fact that
he would farm like his dad and his dad's Dad.
After H.S. graduation he wanted to go to
school but did stay home a year. Then he
went to a Jr. college in Mankato for 3 years.
His father needed help so he went home again
and there he started a farming career which
lasted until 3 years ago.

In the Summer of 1963 he had a mlld
coronary. This meant, according to his Dr.,
doing something with less emotional stress
and trying to get into work that he really
could enjoy. He kept farming on a smaller
scale, but took a job as ass't mgr. of a mfg.
firm at the town we were Uving at the time.
(Gaylord) He enjoyed it to a point, but could
not see himself in a factory all the rest of
his Ufe.

Off and on during our married llfe he had
been encouraged by many to go back to
school if this was his desire. It would be ditfi
cult but possible. Three years ago he heard
of the Rehabilitation Program and became
somewhat encouraged, and soon we were sell
ing our machinery and home. We moved to
Mankato in Nov. of 1967 and all set to start
our whirlwind adventure. He does receive
some from Rehab (35.00) weekly. It sure
helps hut we can't stretCh it far enough. I
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have a full time position at Sears here. That
helps too. Our two teen agers help much by
babysitting (even 16 yr. old Steve).

I do not want you to get the wrong im
pression. I am not asking for pity or a hand
out. We do not expect anything free. We are
not destitute. We have a comfortable home.
But isn't it enough that Wllfred give up
wages he would ordinarlly receive had he
worked for pay during this time he must
spend In school? Why can't there continue
to be loans at a very low interest or even no
interest if it Is paid back within a reasonable
amount of time? Why should he have to
stoop to mortgage everything when it took
sixteen years to find ourselves near to top of
the "hole"? Before he would do that I know
he would give up school and get whatever
work he can. I can't let him do that
now. It will make him feel llke a complete
fallure. (Having the coronary gave too much
direction, but I am afraid he will have an
other if we are forced into financial stress
because of the lack of the opportunity of
the Student loans or help that would be just
as economical.)

Senator, there are a lot of "Wllfreds" at
Mankato State. Some have worse situations
and some I suppose are abusing the oppor
tunity to grab all they can for nothing.

I know money is tight all over. Why not
raise the interest rate on charge accounts and
installment buying of luxuries and please do
what you can to allow the married students
to finish school and not· be forced to get
jobs.

Thank you so very much for your kind con
sideration.

Sincerely,
Mrs. WILFRED HUMBURG.

P.S. Please feel free to stop and see us
when you get into Mankato. We would be
most pleased to meet with you.

"REAL LOAN CRUNCH" MAy ABORT STUDENT
BANK BORROWING

WASHINGToN.-Hundreds of banks and
other money lenders, setting the stage for
what one ollicial says wlll be "a real loan
crunch," are telllng the government they
may have to sharply curtall or end student
loans.

"It may just be sabre rattUng," said an
ollicial of the insured loan bureau in the
U.S. Otfice of Education, "but· we are defi
nitely concerned over a real loan crunch
this summer."

At stake is more than $640 mmion in gov
ernment guaranteed loans now going to 750,
000 students under the Higher Education
Act of 1965.

Under the act the government guarantees
loans of up to $1,000 and a large part of the
Interest for almost any student certified
as attending a college or university.

As commercIal interest rates cUmbed,
CongreEs last year raised the celling ',rom
the original 6 per cent celllng to 7 per .cent.

Earler this year, however, the primEi'in
terest rate-the rate banks charge their
most favored customers-spurted to 7\1, per
cent. With the actual rate that most lenders
charge being closer to 10 per cent, most in
stitutions prefer to sink their money into
something besides students.

The executive of one Midwestern bank
with $5 million in student loans said it
would be "folly" to continue them unless
the law is changed.

The government otficial also said the crisis
arises at a time when the government al
ready is under fire from colleges and uni
versities for cutting back the 10-year-old
national stUdent defense loan program.

Under that program colleges and univer
sities make loans directly to needy stUdents
with money that is 10 per cent theirs and 90
per cent federal.

Whlle the defense loans are intended for
needy students only, the higher education
act was aimed at any student.
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"But. it's tile poor student who will get

hurt. Banks and other lenders probably won't
turn away the sons and daughters of good
customers," said the insured loans official.

Several proposals have been made in Con
gress or are expected that would raise the
guaranteed rate or provide some alternative
such as granting lenders the right to charge
a fet for each loan appllcation or making
some fee arrangement for volume.

The administration is now preparing its
own proposal that is expected to go to Con
gress shortly, but officials declined to give
any detalls.

Virtually all student loans are made in
JUly, August and September, officials say,
and therefore it wlll be several weeks before
trends show whether the lending institutions
actually will carry out threats to shut off
the loans.

",'%, WAYZATA, MINN.,

\ June 22, 1969.
Senaoor WALTER MONDALE,
Washington, D.O,

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: I wlll be a senior
at St. Olaf College next fall, if I can get a
loan, that is. Last semester my GPA was 4.0
I'm not saying this to brag, but to indicate
that I don't mess around at school. At this
point in my life I really want to teach-and
if I graduate, that's what I'll be doing.

But why is the government making it so
difficult for students to get loans? Democ
racy, as I was taught, relles on an educated
electorate--one which knows what's going
on, and one in which men can intelllgently
analyze issues and think for themselves. Col
leges teach people to think, and in so doing,
help create valuable and interested citizens.

So Sylvia Porter stated in the enclosed
article, it would be a disgrace if many stu
dents are prevented from furthering their
education. In the last 3 weeks I have applled
for a loan from about 20 banks In the Twin
City Area. My own bank, Gambles Continen
tal State Bank in St. Paul said it would try
to get my loan appllcation approved by the
office of H, E & W in Kansas City. If it is
not approved, where else can I go to get
money? My father just can't afford to send
me through on his own. I've worked every
summer and throughout the school years,
and have received several scholarships. But
I still need a loan. Do you have any practical
suggestions?

Can you do anything about the situation
in general? It wlll be worse in July & August,
Maybe it's not too late to appropriate some
money to the banks just for student loans.

Please help us-not only are we the new
voters, but the newly-come-of-age citizens.
And, contrary to publlc bellef, most of us
are not hippies or radicals. We just want a
chance to make something of ourselves, and,
in this age, we need a college degree.

So please don't abandon us. An invest
ment in education is probably the most
secure one that can be made. Help us get
the low-interest loans we need.

Let me know what can be done on this
end.

Sincerely yours,
ANDaEA SCHULZ.

A COLUMN BY SYLVIA PORTER
NEW YORK, N.Y.-Qne dreadful result of

the latest upsurge in interest rates and
squeeze on credit is the near-death of the
much-touted federal-state guaranteed stu
dent loan program, designed primarlly to help
middle-income familles.

This threat of extinction comes when ap
pllcations for these loans are headed for their
yearly peak-July and August.

The question facing the banks and hitting
the student borrowers is: How can a bank
pOSSibly alford to lend money to students at
today's federally prescribed maximum of 7
percent?

How can they indeed? When the interest
rate to the nation's prime borrowers has been
increased to 8Y2 percent-meaning the effec
tive rate to these most favored borrowers is at
least 10-11 percent? When regular commer
cial bank loans to students stretch up to 15
percent in annual interest? When repayments
on practically all types of loans begin almost
immediately whlle repayments on loans
under the guaranteed student loan program
may not begin for five years or more?

Unless the loan terms are substantially
sweetened and soon, the program is dead.

When the guaranteed loan program was
launched four years ago, its terms seemed
rich enough. Specifically, students attending
any accredited college, business or vocational
school may borrow up to $1,500 (the maxi
mum is $1,000 in some states) each year they
are In school. If the "adjusted" famlly in
come of the student is less than $15,000 a
year, the federal government will pay the full
7 percent interest while the student is in
school and untll repayment begins 9 to 12
months after graduation or completion of
stUdy.

With these terms the architects of the pro
gram were confident that $1 billion or more
a year would be loaned. In contrast, during
the past school year the actual figure was
$641 mllllon and all estimates for this corning
year are now utterly unreallstic. Simllarly,
nowhel'e near the estimated 923,000 stUdents
who are projected to get loans this coming
school year will actually receive flnancial
help-unless changes occur in the loan terms
or the money markets.

In most parts of the country, only a frac
tion of those applying for loans are getting
them. More and more banks are rejecting all
new appllcations; others are making the loans
only to sons and daughters of favored cus
tomers. Or banks are "trading" loans to vo
cational and business school students in re
turn for business from social-minded com
mercial accounts.

An insider report is that the administmtion
is debating a package 01 legislative proposals
to save the program.

The package could include an increase in
the rate celllng on the loans from the current
7 percent to, say, 9 to 9Y2 percent or sllghtly
more--a level at which the banks could break
even; or the complete ellmination of any rate
celling on this type of loan; or provision for
payment of a federal "Incentive" fee to banks
for each loan; or the addition of "points"
which many banks already are charging in
order to get around state usury laws.

The historic cllmb in.interest rates is a re
flection of today's inflationary demand for
credit and the Federal Reserve System's ef
forts to curb the price-wage spiral by llmit
ing. the supply of credit. Our banks have been
forced into an awful bind and what they are
paying for funds to lend is just as startllng
as what they are charging for the funds they
in turn lend.

But it would be a disgrace in this era If
literally hundreds of thousands of students
are prevented from going to college or voca
tional school because of our anti-inflation
program-and a great danger to our entire
society. We must keep the student loan pro
gram working through this money crisis.

ST. PETER, MINN.,
June 22, 1969.

WALTER F. MONDALE,
Old Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.O.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: I am currently a
student of Augsburg College majoring in ele
mentary education. The cutback of federal
funds for college aid was naturally a great
disappointment to me, as my National De
fense Loan was consequently greatly reduced.

I would very much appreciate any efforts
you could possibly make in aiding the pas
sage of the blll which would enable our bank
to give me a federally insured HEW loan.

This loan is necessary for my family to be
able to meet the cost of my next school year.

Thank you so much for your attention and
concern.

Sincerely,
SANDRA BOLSTAD.

COON RAPIDS, MINN.,
July 27,1969.

Senator WALTER MONDALE.
DEAR SIR: I'm writing this letter to inform

you of a very grave situation. As a stUdent
entering college (Gustavus AdolphUS Col
lege, St. Peter, Minn.) as a freshman this
year, I'm finding it near impossible to re
ceive a government guaranteed student loan.
The banks in the metropolltan area are not
participating in this program. To my knowl
edge, the reason is the high interest rates.

My friends and myself, all middle class
surburbanites, are at a point where we need
help. If loans are not made to us, we will
not be able to attend school this fall. I urge
you to consider our problem. Any help you
may give to me, on how I could go about
obtaining a government loan of this type,
would be greatly appreciated. I am going to
be stUdying for a career in medicine so if I
am to continue school I must have a loan.
I want to go to school and become a success.

Thank you.
Respectfully yours,

STEVEN M. CARLSON.

MINNEAPOLIS, MINN.,
July 24,1969.

Senator WALTER MONDALE,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.O.

DEAa SIR: I'm writing this letter to inform
you on a very grave situation. As a student
entering college as a freshman this year, I'm
finding it near impossible to receive a fed
erally guaranteed student loan. The banks
in the metropolltan area are not partici
pating in this program, To my knowledge,
the reason for this is the high interest rates.

My friends and myself, all middle class
suburbanites, are at a point where we need
help. If loans are not made available to us,
we wlll not be able to attend school this
fall.

I urge you to consider the pllght of the
situation. Any help you may give me on
securing this educational loan would be
appreciated. I'm not asking for a handout
but rather just a chance to go to school. I
want to go to school.

Thank you.
RespectfUlly yours,

ALAN ALECKSON.

MINNEAPOLIS, MINN.,
June 23, 1~69.

Senator WALTER MONDALE,
Washington, D.O.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: I am very dis
stressed upon hearing that the majority of
banks in Minneapolls are very reluctant to
grant Federal Student Loans because of the
recent raise in the prime interest rate to
eight and one half per cent. As you know,
Federal Law guarantees only seven per cent
which currently leaves a difference of one
and one half percent.

Before starting school this year, I had been
out of high school for four years. During
that time I reallzed I was getting no where
so I enrolled at Metropolltan State Junior
College to further my education and gain
some sort of security for our ever changing
society. Since I have been at Metro I have
made the Dean's List twice, have earned an
overall 3.0 average, have been elected to the
Student Senate, and most recently, have
been elected Vice President of the Minnesota
Association of Junior College StUdent Gov
ernment.

It is in this last capacity that I am writing
you. In my position as an offlcer of this orga
nization representing approximately 15,000
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students, I wonder if this new pollcy evi
dently being made by some of the large
l:anks in the Minneapolis area will spread to
the smaller communities where the majority
<of Junior College students live.

This problem is a great one sir, without
t~e assistance of the Federal Government I
{om afraid it may be very difficult and maybe
i:npossible to continue with my education
which in turn, makes me wonder how many
ether students may be affected by this most
r:cent money squeeze. This is of great con
cern sir, and is vitally important that some
thing be done.

May I please hear from you at your earliest
convenience?

Thank you.
Sincerely,

JOSEPH M. MURPHY,
Vice President, MAJCSG.

ELYSIAN STATE BANK,
Elysian, Minn., July 2, 1969.

Re Insured Student Loans
Higher Education Act of 1965

Senator WALTER MONDALE,
U.S. Senator Jrom Minnesota,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: Applications for
Federally Insured Student Loans are being
made of banks to finance students for the
1969-1970 school year to commence this fall.

The return of interest to the bank or other
loaning institution is now set at 7% simple
interest, which is an unrealistic rate at the
going money market.

We have been accepting applications for
these loans hoping that by the time they are
finally processed the interest rate to be paid
to the financial institution would be raised
to be in line with the going 8% or more rate
on almost all loans now being made.

In accepting student loan applications at
the current 7% rate, the loan officer cannot
help but feel that he is acting against tl:l.e
best interest of his institution, and there
fore it is our belief that this rate should be
raised to 8 % .

It ·is our thought that you might bring
this to the attention of the Division of Stu
dent Financial Aid of the Department of
Health, Education and Welfare so that the
existing contllct of interest is removed.

Any assistance you can give along this line
will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,
R. L. LAFRANCE,

President.

MINNESOTA SCHOOL OF BUSINESS,
Minneapolis, Minn., August 4, 1969.

Hon. WALTER F. MONDALE,
U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: The urgency of
the passage of S. 2721 cannot be overstated.

Milllons of college students wlll be de
prived of their educational pursuits this fall
if the Federal Guaranteed Loan Program is
not continued, and the Administration Blll
S 2721 will give the necessary incentive to
the banks so that they will reactivate the
program and the students wlll be able to
pursue their education.

I respectfully urge your favorable con
sideration of this blll on behalf of the stu
dents of this country, and appreciate your
cooperation and understanding of the situa
tion.

Very trUly yours,
W. C. STEVENSON,

President.

:MINNEAPOLIS, MINN.,
August 1, 1969.

Hon. WALTER MONDALE,
U.S. Senate, Old Senate Office BUilding,
Washington, D.C.

My DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: Please find
attached a clipping from the :Minneapolis

Star, July 29, 1969, which concerns proposed
legislation to increase the government in
terest subsidy to banks sponsoring student
loans for college. The past two years such
a loan has enabled me to attend Macalester
College, St. Paul. However I, like many
others, suddenly find myself unable to get
my loan renewed because of increased in
terest rates. I know I represent thousandS of
other college stUdents from middle-class
backgrounds who can neither present suffi
cient need to qualify for college financial ald,
nor who have the personal resources to match
rising private and public college costs. These
loans help us bridge the gap between sum
mers.

Sincerely,
SUZANNE K. TARREY.

PROPOSAL ASKS INTEREST SUBSIDY ON LO.\NS
TO COLLEGE STUDENTS

WASHINGTON, D.C.-The Nixon administra
tion today proposed giving banks an incen
tive payment to pry loose money for loans
to students before colleges open in Septem
ber.

James E. Allen, Jr., education commlssion
er, told a House Education 1mbcommlttee
"emergency ieglslation" is necessary to en
courage banks to make the loans for which
they receive a lower rate of interest.

The student loans are guaranteed by the
government but presently have a maximum
interest rate of 7 percent. The banks now
charge 8.5 percent to their preferred cus
tomers.

INCENTIVE FEE
Under the administration blll, the govern

ment would pay an incentive fee of up to 3
percent above the current 7 percent interest
lImlt and would review the amount of the
fee each six months to determine If it should
be adjusted.

Banks recently raised their prime interest
rate-charged to their preferred or most im
portant customers-to 8.5 percent. Earlier
testimony from bankers indicated that in
terest on student loans would have to be at
least 9.5 percent a year.

Under the proposed loan program, the
government would pay all of the interest
for the student while he is in college. After
he leaves college the student sta~ paying
on the loan and assumes the full 7 percent
interest rate with the government handling
the interest above 7 percent.

BEMIDIJI, MINN.
DEAR MR. MONDALE: My husband and I re

ceived Federally Insured College Loans last
year to finance our education at Bemidji
State College. Last week we received notice
from Thomas Schmidt of Midwest Federal in
Minneapolis that they are completely with
drawn from the college loan program and
neither of the loans will be accepted.

I have only one year left until graduation.
Upon my graduation I had planned to teach
in this area and put my husband through his
last year. As It stands now, however, we are
left stranded with loans that are due if we
quit school and no degrees to make the
money with which to pay them back. With a
small child to feed life hasn't been easy, but
we have been wllling to work and sacrifice.
Both of us feel a responsibility to our coun
try and wish to be as productive as we are
able to be. Both of us plan to enter teaching.

What bothers us is that the stUdents who
borrowed from local banks can again receive
loans even though money is short. As one
gentleman at a local bank put it-they feel
they have a responsibility to the students
they started in college to allow them to finish
even though it is a strain on them. However
no new loans are to be given. Why is it that
Midwest Federal feels no sense of obligation?
I realize that there are more productive loans
for them, but is it fair to leave people in the
final stage of their education with a loan to

payoff a.nd no money to continue in school?
We feel that this situation is worthy of your
inquiry.

Sincerely,
Mrs. JON MOE.

Sr. PAUL, MINN.,
July 30, 1969.

SENATOR MONDALE: We have tried all
sources to secure a Government Student
Loan, so that our son may continue his edu
cation at Mankato State College. All the
banks that we have tried in St. Paul have
turned us down. We realize that this is a
national problem and that anything that you
might be able to do for us would be greatly
appreciated.

Yours trUly,
FRANK A. FINCEL.

ST. PAUL, MINN.,
July 24, 1969.

Senator WALTER F. MONDALE,
Senate Office BUilding,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: I will be a fresh
man this fall at Reed College, Portland,
Oregon, and am relying in a large part on
financial aid, but all my attempts to negoti
ate a Federally Insured Loan (or Guaranteed
Student Loan) have been unsuccessful. The
twelve banks and lending Institutions in the
Twin Cities area which I have tried wlll not
grant these "loss" loans available under the
Federal Higher Education Act of 1965.

I understand that Congress is consider
ing legislation to ease the strain on banks
and encourage their participation in the
student loan program-legislation which wlll
probably take the form of a federal SUbsidy
to the banks equal to or a little more than
the difterence between the loan rate of 7%
and the prime rate (now 8 Yo % ). 1 urge your
st"ong and prompt support oj helpJul legis
lation in this area oj interest-subsidized
student loans.

Very truly yours,
JEAN JOHNSON.

P.S.-I am enclosing a copy of an article
which appeared in the Sunday Minneapolis
Tribune of July'13, 1969, which should be
of interest to you.

[From the Minneapolis (Minn.) Tribune,
July 13, 19691

STUDENT LOAN PLAN PERILED IN MINNESOTA
(By Fred Johnson)

The federal government's guaranteed loan
program for college students is in serious
trouble in Minnesota.

Many banks have reduced or eliminated
their lending activities under the program,
according to a Minneapolis Tribune· survey.
As a result thousandS of students are losing
an important source of financial assistance.

The problem stems from the infiati6iJ,ary
trend in the national economy. Becau$ll. of
tigllt money conditions and rising inte'rest
rates, lending institutions are finding it aiffi
cult to make loans at 7 percent-the maxi
mum interest allowable under the federal
program.

One college official told the story of a Twin
Cities girl who received a letter from her
congressman commending her academic
achievement in high school.

The girl's mother wrote back to the con
gressman that her daughter had been seek
ing a loan to help her continue her educa
tion, and had been turned down by 16 banks.
The mother said she was tired of hearing
about all the money supposedly available to
students.

Another college official said the guaranteed
loans had been a good program, but that
"they are not the answer this year."

As things now stand, "I don't see how
we can have anything but a crisis for many
students," said Edgar M. Carlson, executive
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director of the Minnesota Private College
Council.

Some observers feel the program might be
salvaged if the interest rate could be in
creased. The rate was raised from 6 to 7 per
cent last liummer.

Rep. Edith Green, D-Ore., chairman of the
House Higher Education Subcommittee, has
scheduled hearings for Wednesday and
Thursday to explore possible changes to
make the program work more effectively.

According to sources in Washington, D.C.,
the Nixon administration is thought to be
considering the possibility· of some form of
payment to give bankers more incentive to
make student loans.

Rep. Albert H. Quie of Minnesota, the sen
ior Republican on Mrs. Green's subcommit
tee, said last week that he believes the pres
ent loan program should be. continued. He
suggested., however, that a new program be
created .,~o provide federal guarantees for
loans atf 'frevalling interest rates.

"I don' ,think students would be gouged,"
Quie said, "because with the loans federally
guaranteed, they should qualify as prime
borrowers and get the prime rate."

(The prime' interest rate-generally defined
as the rate banks charge their best corporate
customers":-now is By' percent.)

In a related development, the Board of
Regents of the University of Minnesota
agreed Friday to borrow $500,000 for the uni
versity to use in making 6-percent loans to
students. The principal impetus for the re
gents' action apparently was the 35-percent
tuition increase that will go into effect at
the university this fall.

The problems in the federally guaranteed
loan program are compared by the fact that
other federal aid programs for students are
being reduced.

And as their sources of assistance dwindle,
Minnesota students are faced with sharply
increased fees at both private and public
colleges.

The situation adds up to "total frustra
tion" for some students, said Robert Ma
tUSka, director of student financial aids at
Mankato State College. "I'm totally frus
trated myself," he added.

From September 1967 through May of this
year, Minnesota residents received 33,700
guaranteed loans totaling $28.3 million ac
cording to the Minnesota Higher Education
Co-ordlna.ting Commissions (HECC).

Close to 600 lending institutions in the
state have participated.

The program which was authorized by the
Higher Education Act of 1965, works like
this:

The stUdent gets a loan from a bank, or
another lending Institution, and the federal
government pays the interest as long as he
is in school. After he leaves school the bor
rower assumes the responsibility for paying
off the loan.

A student can borrow up to $1,500 for a
single school year, and up to $7,500 over a
period of years.

Anyone can borrow under the program,
but the Interest subsidy is available only to
those whose adjusted family income does
not exceed $15,000.

According to educators, the program has
benefited studf'nts from low-income families
as well as students with middle-class back
grounds.

The students most seriously affected by
the decline of the program are those who
need their first loan, according to George
Rlsty, a member of the HECC staff.

Students seeking renewed loans under the
program are having their problems, too.

For example, a married student at a state
college who had a guaranteed loan last year
was told by his bank last week that there Is
no possibUity of him getting a loan for the
coming school year, when he hopes to grad
uate.

A Minneapolis man who has two children
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attending college, both of whom have reo
ceived guaranteed loans in the past, got the
same story from his bank.

This man's solution was to dip into his
own savings and make the loans himself. Bu~
it is apparent that this solution will not work
for everyone.

MINNITONKA, MINN.,
July 12, 1969.

Senator MONDALE,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: I am a senior stu
dent in Secondary Education-Sociology at the
University of Minnesota, I sought a renewal
on a Federally guaranteed student loan from
my bank, Pichfield Bank & Trust Co., Min
neapolis. I was told that it would be impos
sible for them to loan money to me again
under that program. They suggested I bor
row It from my parents. My parents do not
have the money to lend me. I am working,
but I wlll not be able to meet the 35% tui
tion increase at the University this year with
out a loan.

I want to aslt you to support the work of
people who are helping me & students in
similar circumstances.

Yours very tnl1y,
MARYANNE WIESER.

HOPKINS, MINN.,
June 19, 1969.

Senator MONMLE: Yesterday I went to
Northwestern National Bank in Minneap
olis to pick up the forms for the federally
insured college loan, I was informed that
this program was no longer In existence. I
am presently a sophomore at St. Cloud State
College and I had a loan last year. I don't
know if I can go back to school if I can't
obtain some funds. My brother is beginning
college this fall also and my family simply
can't afford to pay for it. Could you please
explain to me the reason for canceling this
program? I would also like to know if there
is some other agency I could contact in
order to receive fundi;. Any information you
could send me would be greatly appreciated.
I really want to go back to school.

Thank you.
SANDRA MAAS.

MORE EDUCATION, MORE OPPORTUNITY, A COL
LEGE DEGREE, TRAINING FOR A JOB-THE U.S.
OFFICE OF EDUCATION SPONSORS PROGRAMS
THAT CAN ASSIST You

COLLEGE
If you have been accepted at a college or

if you now attend a college contact the
student financial aid officer at your school.
He can give you specific information and
applications for three college-based pro
grams sponsored by the Office of Education:

(l)-A Program of Grants.
(2)-A Pr'ogram of Loans.
(3)-A Program of Work Opportunities.
The Educational Opportunity Grants Pro-

gram is for students of exceptional financial
need who without this grant would be un
able to continue their education. Grants of
up to $1,000 a year are avallable for 4 years
of undergraduate study; and if you are
selected for an EOG, you wlll also receive
additional financial aid at least equal to the
EOG amount. The financial aid officer at your
school selects those who wlll receive grants
and determines the amount you wlll need.

The Natlonal Defense Student Loan Pro
gram makes it possible for you to borrow
up to $1,000 each year to a total of $5,000
for your undergraduate study and up to
$2,500 each year for graduate or professional
study to a combined total of $10,000 for both
undergraduate and graduate study. As In
the Educational Opportunity Grants Pro
gram, the financial aid ollicer on your cam
pus is responsible for determlnlnll: which stu-

dents are eligible and the amount of the
loan. Repayment begins 9 months after you
cease at least half-time study and may ex
tend over a 10-year period. Interest charges
Of 3 percent also begin at the start of the
repayment period. No repayment is re
qUired and no interest is charged-for any
period up to 3 years during which you are
serving In the Armed Forces, Peace Corps,
or VISTA, The program also provides for
partial or total loan cancellation for stu
dents who enter the field of teaching.

The College Work-StUdy Program may as
sist you by providing a job opportunity for
the college itself or for a public or private
nonprofit agency-such as a school, a so
cial agency, or a hospital-working in co
operation with your school. You may work
an average of 15 hours weekly while classes
are in session and 40 hours per week during
the summer or other vacation periods, In
general, the salary paid Is at least equal to
the current minimum wage, although, It is
frequently higher. The financial aid officer
is responsible for determining the students
to be employed, selecting suitable jobs for
them, handling the payrOll, and the general
administration of the program,

For more specific Information and appli
cations on these three programs, see your
financial aid officer. If you are not in school
now, write to the DirectorjOffice of Student
Financial Aid at the school you would like
to attend.

COLLEGE OR VOCATIONAL TRAINING
The Guaranteed Loan Program: The Officc

of Education also sponsors a loan program
which may enable you to borrow money
directly from a savings and loan association,
credit union, bank, or other participating
lender. The general outline was establlshed
by Federal law; but each State administers
the program according to slightly different
procedures. Depending on your year in school,
you may borrow up to a maximum of $1,500;
in some States, this maximum Is $1,000 per
year. If your adjusted family Income is under
$15,000 per year, the Federal Government wlll
pay the full interest charged on this loan
while you are attending school, and prior to
the beginning of the repayment period. Re
payment begins on a date between 9 and
12 months after you complete your course of
study or leave school. The maximum re
payment period is 10 years, although mini
mum repayment requirements may reduce
this. Deferment of repayment may be au
thorized for service In the military, Peace
Corps, or VISTA; or for any period that you
return to full-time study.

For the first time you can rt ,eive financial
aid to help you gain vocational training that
wlll broaden your employment opportuni
ties. There are no age limitations. You do not
have to be a high school graduate or even an
elementary school graduate. The only re
quirement is that you be able to benefit
from the training you receive.

Arrangements for your loan-Whether you
are interested in a college degree or vocational
training-must be made directly between
you and your lender. Applications are avail
able from lenders, schools, or the guarantee
agency designated for your State of legal
residence listed below.

You may borrow under this program if:
(I)-you are enrolled or have been ac

cepted for enrollment as an undergraduate,
graduate, or professional student--on at
least a half time basls--at an eligible college
or university or hospital school of nursing, or

(2)-you are enrolled or have been ac
cepted for enrollment-on at least a half
time basis-in an approved vocational, tech
nical, or business school.

Your State guarantee agency, lender, or
student financial aid officer will be able to
provide you with:

(1) -specific information regarding the
operation of the program in your State.

(2)-the necessary application forms.



23428 CONGRESSIONAL RECORD - SENATE August 12, 1969
(3)-lnformatlon on the eligibility of your

school.
The programs described in this brochure

are by no means the only forms of financial
assistance available to you. Many other Fed
eral agencies sponsor programs of financial
assistance for students In specific career
fields. Public and private organizations are
also involved in aiding students who wish to
further their education. Information on these
other sources of aid Is available at your school
or pUbllc library from your high school coun
selor, or from the financial aid officer at your
school.

Remember: Applications and detailed in
formation are available from your college or
university for the college-based programs
and from your lender, State guarantee agency,
or StUdent Financial Aid Office for the Guar
anteed StUdent Loan Program.

SOURCES

Sources of Information on the guaranteed
loan programs for students:

Alabama
Director of Higher Education, Office of Edu

cation, Region IV, 50 Seventh Street NE., At
lanta, Georgia 30323.

Alaska
United Student Aid Funds, Inc., 845 Third

Avenue, New York, New York 10022.
Arizona

Director of Higher Education, Office of Edu
cation, Region IX, 760 Market Street, San
Francisco, Cal1fornia 94102.

Arkansas
Student Loan Guarantee Foundation of

Arkansas, Suite 615, 1515 W. 7th Street, Little
Rock, Arkansas 72202.

California
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region IX, 760 Market Street, San
Francisco, California 94102.

Colorado
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region VIII, 9017 Federal Office
Building, 19th and Stout Streets, Denver,
Colorado 80202.

Connecticut
Connecticut StUdent Loan Foundation,

Room 9, 54 Pratt Street, Hartford, Connecti
cut 06103.

Delaware
Delaware Higher Education Loan Program,

Brandywine Junior College, Wilmington, Del
aware 19802.

District Of Columbia

Program Coordinating Unit, 1329 E Street
NW., Washington, D.C. 20004.

Florida

Director of Higher Education, Office ot
Education, Region IV, 50 Seventh street NE.,
Atlanta, Georgia 30323.

Georgia

Georgia Higher Education Assistance Cor
poration, Room 502, Hartford Building, 100
EdgeWOOd Avenue NE., Atlanta, Georgia
30303.

Hawaii
Department of Budget and Finance, state

Office Building, Post Office Box 150, Honolulu,
Hawaii 96810.

Idaho

Director of Higher Education, Office ot
Education, Region VIII, 9017 Federal Office
Building, 19th and Stout Streets, Denver,
Colorado 80202.

Illinois

11l1nois State Scholarship Commission, 730
Waukegan Road, Post Office Box 33, Deerfield,
Illinois 60015.

India1l4
College Student Loan Program, Indiana

Stat-e Scholarship, Room 514, State Office

Building, 100 North Senate Avenue, Indian
apol1s, Indiana 46204.

Iowa
Higher Education Facilities Commission,

1300 Des Moines Building, Des Moines, Iowa
50309.

Kansas
Directory of Higher Education, Office ot

Education, Region VI, 601 East 12th Street,
Kansas City, Missouri 64106.

Kentucky
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance

Authority, 319 Ann Street, Frankfort, Ken
tucky 40601.

Louisiana (in-State-students)
Louisiana Higher Education Assistance

Commission, Post Office Box 44095, Capitol
Station, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802.

Louisiana (out-of-State-students)
United States Aid Funds, Inc., 845 Third

Avenue, New York, New York 10022.
Maine

Maine State Department of Education, Au
gusta, Maine 04330.

Maryland
Maryland Higher Education Loan Corpora

tion, 2100 Guilford Avenue, Baltimore, Mary
land 21218.

Massachusetts
Massachusetts Higher Education Assistance

Corporation, 511 Statler Building, Boston,
Massachusetts 02116.

Michigan
Michigan Higher Education Assistance Au

thority, Commerce Building. P.O. Box 420,
Lansing, Michigan 48902.

Minnesota
Director of Higher Education, Office of Edu

cation, Region VI, 601 East 12th Street, Kan
sas City, Missouri, 64106.

Mississippi
Board of Trustees of Institutions of Higher

Learning, 1007 Woolfolk Building, Jackson,
Mississippi 39201.

Missouri

Commission for Higher Education, 600
Clark Avenue, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101.

Montana
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region VIII, 9017 Federal Office
Buflding, 19th and Stout Streets, Denver,
Colorado 80202.

Nebmska
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region VI, 601 East 12th Street,
Kansas City, Missouri 64106.

Nevada
United Student Aid Funds, Inc., 845 Third

Avenue, New York, New York 10022.

New Hampshire
New Hampshire Higher Education Assist

ance Foundation, 3 Capitol Street, Concord,
New Hampshire 03301.

New Jersey
New Jersey Higher Education Assistance

Authority, 225 West State Street, Trenton,
New Jersey 08625.

New l'rlexico
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region VII, 1114 Commerce Street,
Dallas, Texas 75202.

New¥ork
New York Higher Education Assistance

Corporation, 159 Delaware Avenue, Delmar,
New York 12054.

North Carolina
State Education Assistance Authority,

1307 Glenwood Avenue, Raleigh, North Caro
lina 27605.

North Dakota
Director of IDgher Education, Office of

Education, Region VI, 601 East 12th Street,
Kansas City, Missouri 64106.

Ohio
Ohio Student Loan Commission, Wyan

dotte Building, 21 West Broad Street, Colum
bus, Ohio 43215.

Oklahoma
Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Edu

cation,State Capitol, Oklahoma City, Okla
homa 73105.

Oregon
State of Oregon Scholarship Commission,

Post Office Box 3175, Eugene, Oregon 97402
Pennsylvania

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance
Agency, Towne House, 660 Boas Street, Har
risburg, Pennsylvania 17102.

Puerto Rico
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region III, 220 Seventh Street
NE., Charlottesville, Virginia 22901.

Rhode Island
Rhode Island Higher Education Assistance

Corporation, Room 404, 139 Mathewson
Street, Providence, Rhode Island 02901.

South Carolina
United Student Aid Funds, Inc., 845 Third

Avenue, New York, New York 10022.
South Dakota

Director of Higher Education, Office of
Education, Region VI, 601 East 12th Street,
Kansas City, Missouri 64106.

Tennessee
Tennessee Education Loan Corporation,

State Department of Education, 115 Cordell
Hull Building, Nashvllle, Tennessee 37219.

Texas (Direct state Loans)
Director of Student Financial Aid, Texas

College & University System, Sam Houston
State Office Building, 201 East 14th Street,
Austin, Texas 78701.

Texas (Guaranteed Loans)
United Student Aid Funds, Inc., 845 Third

Avenue, New York, New York 10022.
Utah

Director of Higher Education, Office of
Education, Region VIII, Room 9017, Federal
Office Building, 19th and Stout Streets,
Denver, Colorado 80202.

Vermont
Vermont Student Assistance Corporation,

109 South Winooski Avenue, Burllngton,
Vermont 05401.

Virginia (In-State-Students)
Virginia State Education Assistance Au

thority, 1116 State-Planters Bank Building,
Richmond, Virginia 23216. "

Virginia (Out-of-State-StUllffltS)
Director of Higher Education, Office of

Education, Region III, 220 Seventh Street,
NE., Chariottesvllle, Virginia 22901.

Washington
Director of Higher Education, Office ot

Education, Region IX, 50 Fulton Street, Re
gional Office Building, San Francisco, Cali
fornia 94102.

West Virginia
Director of Higher Education, Office - of

Education, Region III, 220 Seventh Street,
NE., Chariottesvllle, Virginia 22901.

Wisconsin
Wisconsin Higher Education Corporation,

State Office Building, 115 West Wilson Street,
Madison, Wisconsin 53702.

Wyoming
Director, Higher Education, Office of Edu

cation, Region VIII, Room 9017 Federal Office
Building, 19th and Stout Streets, Denver,
Colorado 80202.
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NICOLLIT MINN.,

July 15,1969.
Han. WALTER MONDALE.

DEAR SIR: I am writing in regard to the
Federal backing of student loans for college
Iltudel..ts. There seems to be a question if
It can be had this year. It seems as if the
banks are hesitant to go along. Of course the
interests will be higher than before. I have
a grandson that has been living with us
since he was a baby. He has been going to
Gustavus Adolphus for two years. It wlll be
hard for him and other students that plan
on this help.

Thanking you for the good job you are
doing for Minnesota and the Nation.

I remain,
Yours truly,

ARCHIE A. WEBSTER.

NORTHv<.:.ESTERN ELECTRONICS INSTITUTE,
•. "'Minneapolis, Minn., July 31, 1969.

Han. WA~ERF. MONDALE,
Senate Ot/ice Building,
Washington, D.C.:

What can be done to make the federally
Insured stUdent loan program more attrac
tive to lending agencies? Our bank, having
loaned one million dollars to college and
technical school students, Is now at the point
of discontinuing this program, the paper
work involved In processIn J the loan appll
cation and the problem attendant to tracing
borrower and collection programs make it
impractical to continue this service at the
establlshed interest rate. This financing pro
gram Is great for the student to enable him
to pursue post high school education. How
ever, tighter controls must be Implemented
In the law and greater benefits establlshed
for the lending agency.

C. L. LARSON,
President.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. Pre3ident, the is
sue we face here is a fairly technical one.
As the Senator from Colorado points
out, the 7-percent ceiling presently exist
ing on guaranteed loans to students is far
below the current market interest rate.
Thus. lenders are reluctant to make
loans at what they regard as an interest
loss.

The proposal pending before the Sen
ate this morning would add to that 7
percent a subsidy that wouhi be paid by
the Federal Government to a le:lder to
make up the difference between the 7
percent which a student would pay and
the market rate which the lender could
charge.

The reason for providing a Federal
subsidy on insured student loans is to
give the banker the profit he would gain
from interest rates at the current level.
In other words, the banker would re
ceive full compensation and full profit.
This is not the morning to discuss
whether the profits are exorbitant. It is,
however, relevant to point out that in
terest rates generally are the highest
they have been in probably 100 years.

In any case, under these prOVisions,
the banker will receive most impressive
profits indeed. We are not arguing with
that. We regret the high interest rate,
but this proposal has been unanimously
reported from the Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare with that provision
included.

The question is, Should the banker. in
addition to benefiting from that high
interest rate on what is to him a riskless
loan insured by the Federal Government,
condition this student loan on a require-

ment that the student or his parents
leave deposits with the bank, or conduct
personal business with the bank. or in
otber ways have commercial relation
ships with the bank, which profit the
bank even more? Should the banker be
permitted to make his 7 percent from
the student, receive the Federal interest
sUbsidy, be totally protected against risk
by the full faith and credit of tbe United
States Govemment and in addition be
permitted to impose upon the borrower
a commitment that will drive the banle's
profit up even higher? This is the issue.

The distinguished Senator from Mas
sachusetts saiel that this is a program
that should be geared to get money in the
hands of a student so he can go on to
college. To do this we are willing to pay
the banker a reasonable profit, but we
ought to stop there. We ought to say that
these loans are available to the young
men and women of this country for col
lege or vocational school, without requir
ing, in addition, that they have parents
who are wealthy enough to leave deposits
in banks, or have any commercial busi
ness, and or have commercial papers or
loans handled through the lending
institution.

It seems to me that the provision
prohibiting the continuation of this "dis
criminatory practice is impressively mod
est and long overdue. It is something we
have learned on the basis of experience
in this program that needs to be cor
rected.

The American Bankers Association
this morning, in a letter placed on my
desk, admits that this has been the nor
mal practice. They say that past banking
relationships provide a normal and
understandable basis for such judg
ments.

We hear much these days about how
the private sector should help the public
sector solve the human problems which
this Nation faces. I agree with that con
cept. But is it too much to ask. when
the Federal Government insures bankers
a very handsome. riskless profit, for
them to make these loans available with
out discrimination in their communities,
without in addition imposing a charge
that will make available lending oppor
tunities and borrowing opportunities on
ly to those prospective students who have
the kind of connections, with their par
ents or with others. that further increase
the profits of the bank?

I should like to read a typical letter on
this problem which shows what is hap
pening in this connection with the guar
anteed loan program in this country.
This is a letter from Mrs. Clarence Mol
stad of Brainerd, Minn. In it she points
out that her son is a gifted premedical
student, well on his way to an impressive
mzdical career. But, in order to send him
through school he needs a loan; they
do not have the money themselves. This
is what she reports:

The First National Bank of Brainerd Is the
local bank designated to make federally In
sured loans. Carl talked to the banker about
securing this type of loan and was told that
because we were not customers, he could
not be granted the loan. The only banking
that we do Is to have a personal checking
account, since we ha"e no mortgages, loans,
or saVings account. When I told the banker

this, he told me the bank does not make any
money on a checking account, and therefore
he doubted If the bank directors would grant
the loan.

This is happening all over the country.
Decent young men and women need
loans in order to get through college.
Today we are going to adopt an amend
ment which not only will permit banks
to make 7 percent on that loan, but also
will provide that the Federal Govern
ment will make up any difference be
tween 7 percent and the market rate;
yet, banks are insisting that in addition
to this, they make money from deposits.
Apparently, a checking account from a
modest income family in a bank will not,
in some cases, be enough to qualify a
member of that family for an insured
student loan from that bank. Instead,
they are going to ration these highly de
sirable 7-percent loans among those
most able to increase the profits to the
banks. This practice destroys or seri
ously interferes with the effectiveness of
this program.

I commend the Senator from Massa
chusetts for insisting that these loans be
made to students on the basis of need
and not on the basis of the fortuity of
having parents with enough money to
enrich the banks further.

We have heard this morning, and we
have heard elsewhere, that this is a vol
untary program, and the only way one
can get the private banking industry to
make loans is to sweeten the pot further;
otherwise they will not do it. One won
ders what happened to the rhetoric of
public service that we hear so often from
the private sector. But, apart from that,
I think the statistics belie that conclu
sion, because, in the 4-year history of
the guaranteed loan program,loans have
risen dramatically, even in 1969, when
interest rates were at an alltime high.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator has expired.

Who yields time?
Mr. MONDALE. I ask for 1 additional

minute.
Mr. PELL. I yield 1 additional minute

to the Senator from Minnesota.
Mr. MONDALE. In 1966. the guaran

teed loan program provided $77 million
in loans; in 1967. $248 million; in 1968,
$436 million; in 1969. $672 million. So
loans are being made at an alltime high,
even with these exceedingly high inter
est rates, despite the fact that there is a
7-percent ceiling. And we have taken a
step in this bill to subsidize the bankers
for the difference between 7 percent and
the market rate.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MONDALE. I yield.
Mr. KENNEDY. In spite of the fact

that a 7-percent rate is guaranteed by
the Federal Government, as I under
stand, in banking circles, that is worth
at least 1 point or even a point and a
quarter. Is that correct?

Mr. MONDALE. The Senator is cor
rect. Because there is no risk of loss. In
other words, we are now guaranteeing
them a profit, at interest rates that are
at an alltime high, and we are protecting
them with the integrity of the Federal
Government against any loss.
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The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time

of the Senator has expired.
Who yields time?
Mr. PELL. I yield 1 additional minute

to the Senator from Minnesota.
Mr. MONDALE. Now they want to go

OI1P. step further and say that banks
should be permitted to discriminate be
tween insured student loan applicants
on the basis of their families wealth, or
connections, so that banks can increase
their profits under this program even
further. It creates a wholly indefensible
situation, in which a decent student, be
cause he does not have money, cannot
get loans, despite everything we are do
ing to enrich the bankers. I think the
time has come to ask the bankers to help
us in this situation.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MONDALE. I yield.
Mr. KENNEDY. As I understand, half

of the students who are in college today
are from the top quarter percentile in
terms of family income, and only 7 per
cent are in the lower quarter in terms of
family income. I think this can suggest
that we are finding the middle higher in
comes are able to take advantage of some
of these programs to'a much greater de
gree; and this situation, without this
amendment, could very well increase
that trend.

Mr. MONDALE. The Senator is cor
rect.

Clark Kerr, who I think is regarded as
one'of the Nation's experts in this field,
said that today a young man or
woman--

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator has expired.

Who yields time?
Mr. MONDALE. I ask for 1 additional

minute.
Mr. PELL. I yield one-half minute to

the Senator from Minnesota.
Mr. MONDALE. Mr. Kerr said that to

day a young man or woman whose family
income is in the top half of the national
income range has three times the chance
to get a college education as one whose
family is in the bottom half.

In other words, we know that with
children of equal ability, one from rich
parents, one from poor parents, the child
from the poorer family has about one
third the chance of going on to college.

For these reasons, I urge the Senate
to retain the provisions in this bill that
were added during the deliberations of
the Labor and Public Welfare Commit
tee. The incentive allowance for the in
sured student loan program coupled with
the prohibition against discrimination by
lenders based on an applicant's wealth
or connections, and expanded authOliza
tions for the educational opportunity
grants program, the national defense
student loan program, and the college
work stUdy program represent important
improvements in our efforts to expand
opportunities for higher education.

I strongly support this effort to in·
crease the availability of financial assist
ance for students in higher education.
and I pledge my support for efforts to
assure that important programs of Fed
eral aid to education-from preschool
education through adult education-are

funded at fuller and more adequate
levels in fiscal year 1970.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I Yield 5
minutes to the Senator from Missouri.

Mr. EAGLETON. I thank the Senator.
Mr. President, I do not know how

many Senators are personally ac
quainted with Mr. Willis Alexander the
president of the American Banker; As
sociation. It happens that I am ac
quainted with him. Although he is from
a small town in Missouri, he neverthe
less is one of our more prestigious citi
zens and is a very fine gentleman.

I know that Mr. Alexander, in terms
of running his bank and the granting of
loans in that bank, would not hold it
against a student that the student's par
ents were not depositors in his bank.

I also know that Willis Alexander has
sufficient leadership among bankers
within the State of Missouri and in th~
Nation, to prevail upon most of those
who are associated with him in the
banking profession not to discriminate
against students whose parents, because
of economic circumstance or happen
stance, are not depositors in the respec
tive banks where the loans are being
sought.

Mr. Alexander, in his letter of August
11, which the Senator from Colorado
(Mr. DOMINICK) has had cirCUlated, says
"past banking relationships provide a
normal and understandable basis for
such jUdgments by many banks and
their customers."

I say that is eminently correct insofar
as the purely private sector is concerned.

Absent any Federal guaranteed loan
program or Federal involvement at all, it
is only natural and 100 percent all
American if a bank gives preference to
someone who had a continuing financial
relationship with that bank, whether it
be a corporation or a private individual.
Banks normally would do business with
people who have been friendly with them
in their business relationships. That is
fine in the purely private sector. But this
no longer is a purely private relationship.
When we pass this law, the Federal Gov
ernment is involved, since as the Senator
from Minnesota (Mr. MONDALE) stated,
the U.S. Government would be guaran
teeing a profit.

Therefore, it is not just a normal con
tinuous private relationship. Uncle Sam
is now in the picture. Thus, what may be
precedent in terms of doing business
with friends and mutual back scratching
in the private sector, is not precedent in
the public sector. It should not be the
public policy of this Government that we
would condone, wittingly or unwittingly,
the alleged and teuuous right of a bank
to say. "We will loan federally guaran
teed and federally subsidized money to
students whose parents do business with
us, but to Willy Jones down the street,
whose parent do not deposit with us, we
will leave him high and dry."

Finally, I wish to say that the Senator
from Colorado (Mr. DOMINICK) pointed
out in his remarks that there is an emer
gency about this bill. Indeed. there is.
He pointed out he has received tele
phone calls and letters from home. I am
sure he has. Indeed, I have also. Many
of these calls and many of these letters

point out what was mentioned by the
Senator from Minnesota (Mr. MONDALE)
In the terms of his letter from the stu
dent from Brainerd, Minn. My tele
phone calls and letters indicate that stu
dent after stUdent has sought the finan
cial advantages of this law and they
have been denied same because their par
ents did not do business at a certain
bank.

I receive calls in which I am asked,
"Why can't my son get a loan just be
cause I do not do business with bank X
or bank Y? Why should the law permit
that?"

I think the Kennedy language goes a
long step forward in putting into the
law what should have been there all
along: That there is no preference, ad
vantage. or disadvantage; that every one
seeking a loan is on a parity. This is the
only way it should be and the only way
in which Congress should give its stamp
of approval.

Mr. COOK. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield to me for 1 minute?

Mr. PELL. I yield.
Mr. COOK. Mr. President, I have lis

tened carefully to this debate. To me one
of the major points is missing. Mr. Presi
dent, we watched the program when the
7-percent maximum interest rate was
established and we watched bankers of
the country almost freeze that program
at 7 percent. We are now considering a
bill to give incentives to the bank not to
exceed 3 additional percentage points,
which is a 10-percent maximum.

Is there any doubt in the mind of any
one in this Chamber that the bankers of
the United States, as soon as this bill is
passed, will continue to freeze the ac
counts and force on the Commissioner of
Education and the Secretary of the
Treasury the 3 additional percentage
points, and it will go to the maximum of
10 percent. He will have his maximum
of 10 percent, and he wijl have his incen
tives also to force on the families of
youngsters that may do business with the
bank.

We can talk about the problems of our
country, but let us discuss the real prob
lem. The banks will not stop at 7 per
cent; they will continue until the in
terest is 10 percent. We are not consider
ing incentives to the bank but how long
it will take the banks to get to the maxi
mum of 10 percent. In additiop, there is
the effort to take out of the bill'J;he abil
ityof the bank not to force on the family
or the students the provision that he must
do business with the bank.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. PELL. Mr. President. I reserve the
remainder of my time.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, how
much time do I have remaining?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator has 13 minutes remaining.

Mr. DOMINICK. I yield myself 5 min
utes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator is recognized for 5 minutes.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I have
been listening to this discussion between
the Senator from Massachusetts (Mr.
KENNEDY), the Senator from Missouri
(Mr. EAGLETON), the Senator from Min-
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nesota (Mr. MONDALE), and the Senator
from Kentucky (Mr. COOK).

I think they miss the point. The prob
lem they are overlooking was stated in
the hearings over and over again. The
available funds in the market for lend
ing are so tight that the interest rate is
above 7 percent. Therefore, if any bank
er or other lender on a voluntary basis
is going to give a loan to a student he
is going to have to have either added
increments in the way of an account or
something of this kind, or he will have
to have, in the alternative, an incentive.

The purpose of our original bill, un
encumbered with riders, is to get away
from the very problem that has been
reciteq. by my distinguished colleagues on
the· other side.

Looting at page 38 of the hearings, Mr.
Simmons. who is in charge of higher ed
ucation lending in the Office of Educa
tion, said:

We have at the present time about 18,934
lenders. This includes savings and loans,
credit unions, and banks. The great bulk of
that are commercial banks, and I would say
of this about 16,000 banks, in that number,
80 percent have made loans.

I would say at the present time that has
dropped considerably. We have calls every
day and letters by the stacks of those which
are having to withdraw from the program.

I think the important thing here is when
this program was authorized in 1965, there
was a prime rate of 4.5 percent and Congress
gave us a rate of 6 percent. Today, in spite
of the increase of last year, we are a point
and a half below prime.

So we have just been priced out of the
market, you might say, and we are com
peting for the doBar, whether it be mort
gage or personal loans or automobiles, we
are low man on the totem pole in competing
for that dollar.

That is the witness from the Office of
Education, the man in charge of student
loans. He is not a banker or other lender
trying to break even or make a profit in
the private enterprise system.

Let us go back to the testimony of Mr.
Willis Alexander, who was referred to
by the Senator from Missouri. Mr. Alex
ander stated on page 46 of the hearings:

StUdent loans, even though guaranteed,
are comparatively expensive to originate and
service. Normally, more than one interview
is Involved and the paper work incident to
guarantee agency approval is considerable.
The repayment period Is protracted and fre
quently Is extended by changes In educa
tional plans and grace periods for Govern
ment and mlIltary service. It is not by sug
gestion that the rate of return on these
loans should be such as to yield a normal
profit. The return should, however, be real
istic in terrns of both money costs and over
head costs to the end that a breakeven point
Is attainable. In the present environment,
the seven percent Interest rate now charged
on such loans does not meet this goal.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator has expired.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I yield
myself 3 additional minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator is recognized.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, so all
of this discussion-I was going to use
another word but I will no~about the
profits bankers and other lenders are
making on student loans is plain baloney,
to put it in simple language.

I wish to ask Senators on the other
side of the aisle a question and I hope
the RECORD will reflect an answer. The
Kennedy rider uses the term "lender."
Not only banks make loans under the
program. Credit unions make guaranteed
loans to students. Labor unions make
guaranteed loans to students. Are Sena
tors going to say a person does not have
to be a member of the credit union in
order to get a student loan? That is
what they would be saying. Are Senators
going to say a person does not have to
be a member of a labor union to get a
student loan? That is what they would
be saying. If Senators want to put that
language in the bill, the Senate can work
its will, but I think it would be a terrible
mistake.

What the rider does is decrease the in
centive of those in the lending business
to make loans available to students.
What I want to do is increase the avail
ability of loans to students, not decrease
them.

Mr. President, I reserve the remainder
of my time.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I yield
myself 2 minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for
2 minutes.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I find my
self in a very difficult position. I want
to do my best to help the Senate in this
situation. I was the author of a "state
ment of policy" which was contained in
the bill as it came from the subcom
mittee seeking to discourage the denying
of loans to students who do no business
with the bank. I think that is a perfectly
proper thing to do, where we are giving
incentive allowances to the banks. On
the other hand, I have grave disquiet
about this provision. In fidelity to the
situation as we resolved it in the sub
committee, I shall have to vote in favor
of the motion to strike out.

I shall advise the Senate, should it
succeed, that I would expect immedi
ately to offer the "statement of policy"
which was originally contained in the
subcommittee bill.

I shall not try to go over all the ground
which has been gone over, but there is
one point which has been omitted which,
to me, is decisive. I appeal to the Senator
from Massachusetts (Mr. KENNEDY) and
the committee, on the same ground,
which will come as no surprise to him,
but is of very great concern to me, and
that is the situation in which we cannot
force a bank to make a loan. Nor do
we have an analogy as we have in the
employment situation where there are
antidiscrimination laws where there is
a job slot, so that we can apportion the
demands of the slot and say that he
has been rejected and is not eligible for
the slot for various reasons-skill, and
so forth-only because he is black. So
we can make a finding on that score.
However, we are now dealing with a
case where banks have plenty of business.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator from New York has
expired.

Mr. JAVITS. I yield myself 2 minutes
on the bill.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for
2 minutes on the bill.

Mr. JAVITS. This is not an open situ
ation on money which is going begging
because borrowers cannot be found.
Banks will generally give a break to the
stUdent. Banks will generally do that
because the student can be a good cus
tomer of the bank in the days ahead.
But it is necessarily legally unacceptable
as such. The Senator from Massachusetts
did modify the language so that it is
much more reSpOnsible than it was be
fore. I think it would have been an
absolute prohibition.

Again, what bothers me is the fact that
the HEW Secretary must lay down rules
and regulations-this is the central
poin~thus it wiII jeopardize the banks
getting its money out of the incentive
allowance as a matter of law because the
allowance is paid after, not before, the
expiration of the quarterly period. It is
paid not on the existing loan but is paid
on the average of loan balances for all
similar loans and this is provided for in
the law.

Page 6, line I, speaks of the average
unpaid balance and disbursed principal.

Page 6, lines 23 and 24, says that the
reimbursement shall be, "after the close
of such period."

Therefore, one complaint to the Secre
tary that a particular banking institution
had set a condition for a loan, or pro
posed one, or indicated one, wilI hold up
that bank's reimbursement. It is a mar
ginal proposition now. There is no real
money in this for the bank. I appreci
ate the words spoken about profit, there
is very little or no profit in this. Banks
have plenty of other business. They do
not need this except for customer
relations.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The time
of the Senator from New York has
expired.

Mr. JAVITS. I yield myself 1 minute
on this bill.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New York is recognized for 1
additional minute on the bill.

Mr. JAVITS. So it is very easy for a
bank to say, "Why jeopardize the whole
incentive allowance? Forget it. Let some
one else handle it."

This bothers me. Therefore, I think
the "statement of policy" approach is
best. I beg of the Senate to bear in mind
the way this thing has worked out, the
scheme wilI be that a bank may be de
nied its whole incentive payment for a
whole quarter merely because of a com
plaint on a given situation which might
take some time to prove out. The very
thing a banker wants to avoid is to fuss
around with this kind of charge and
answer it himself. The statement of pol
icy is exactly what should be done. The
present provision to make the Secretary
prescribe the rules and regulations is
better than an absolute prohibition. But
it stilI does jeopardize the payment.

For those reasons, on balance, I say,
most regrettably, because I am sympa
thetic with the thrust of what by col
leagues have argued for, that I feel that
I shall have to vote for the amendment
of the Senator from Colorado (Mr. DOMI-
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NICK); but I shall offer the "statement
of policy" if the amendment should suc
ceed.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, how
much time do I have remaining?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator has 7 minutes remaining.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I ask
for the yeas and nays on the amendment.

The yeas and nays were ordered.
Mr. COOK. Mr. President, will the

Senator from Rhode Island yield?
Mr. PELL. I yield, 1 minute on the bill

and 1 minute on the amendment, to the
Senator from Kentucky.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Chair
would advise the Senator from Rhode
Island that he has only 1 minute remain
ing. The Senator from Kentucky is rec
ognized for 1 minute.

Mr. COOK. Mr. President, I reiterate
the point I made a short time ago that,
with all due respect to the Senator from
New York, all of us will have to admit
that the banking community within a
very short period of time will have their
loan interest at a maximum of 10 per
cent I do not think there will be any
doubt about that at all.

Relative to the statement that banks
are obviously not lacking any money, to
loan at 7 percent, I think that is right
there is no argument about that. But this
is the reason I think that the bill is before
the Senate today, because they have not
found it profitable and therefore an in
centive is being extended to them so that
they might break even, or possibly make
a small profit. When the banks expect
the taxpayers of this Nation to put up
3 percent of the total of these loans in
the future, to keep students in college so
that banks will lend them this money,
then I think the people of this Nation
are also expecting something from the
banks. I think that something from the
banks is this section which says that
they do not have to require that the
student or the student's parents do
business with the bank.

I might suggest to the Senator from
New York that we have a bank in Wash
ington that seems to want to do business
with Members of Congress and it is not
complaining that it is not making a profit
from the loans. As a matter of fact, as
I read in the newspapers, they are not
even breaking even. So I might suggest
that, if they are that magnanimous, if
we make a student loan at a 10-percent
interest rate, the banks might consider
taking a student on his merits with a
guaranteed 10 percent and not expect
the student's parents or the student to
have other banking connections in con
nection with that situation.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. PELL. I have a few remarks and
I am prepared to yield back the remain
der of my time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I yield
myself 2 minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Colorado is recognized for 2
minutes.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I am
not going to delay the Senate. I want to
say that what the Senator from Ken
tucky just said is probably true. What
we are trying to do, however, and what
I think he is overlooking, is the fact that
we are trying to g:3t more lenders to
participate, not less. If we are going to
do that, we have to give them the op
portunity to do it on the basis they
can ration some of their funds on a non
loss basis, at least to students who are
eligible for loans.

So far as the taxpayers are concermid,
a $9.1 million investment in the guar
anteed loan program generates $200 mil
lion in student loans. But the direct loan
approach of NDEA requires $200 million
of taxpayers' money to provide $200 mil
lion in student loans.

I should say NDEA would cost $180
million, because the federal share is 90
percent.

From the taxpayer's standpoint, the
guaranteed loan program is obviously a
much better utilization of funds.

Just reiterating again the points that
were made both by myself and the Sena
tor from New York, we all hope that we
will be able to extend the program to
more students and that more credit un
ions, labor unions, savings and loan in
stitutions, banks and other types of lend
ing institutions will be participating in
the program.

To the extent that we put restrictions
on their voluntary participation by gov
ernment rules and regUlations, we de
crease the opportunity for providing
funds for student loans.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator's 2 minutes have expired.

Mr. DOMINICK. I yield myself 1 min
ute.

So for that reason, and because I com
pletely agree with the analysis that the
Senator from New York has made of the
Kennedy rider and its effect, and because
I think it will adversely affect the credit
unions, the labor unions, the savings and
loan associations, and the banks, as
well-which I do not think has been
taken into consideration by the propo
nents of this particular section-I again
urge that we repeal the rider.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield me 1 minute?

Mr. DOMINICK. I yield 1 minute to
the Senator from Vermont.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President, it seems
to me that we are overlooking the most
important factor in this legislation. In
my jUdgment, if this provision is kept in
the bill, we are jeopardizing and prob
ably denying loans to between 150,000
and 200,000 students. That is the issue.
We can take any philosophical or eco
nomic approach that we want; however,
unless we report the bill to the other
body in a form which will be acceptable
to them, in my judgment we are not
going to have a bill. I trust Senators will
keep that in mind.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield me 2 minutes?

Mr. PELL. I yield to the Senator from
Massachusetts.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I think
it is important to realize what the provi
sion that we have in the bill at present
does, which will be eliminated if the
amendment of the distinguished Sena
tor from Colorado is successful.

The provision in the bill in no way
makes mandatory a cutoff or termination
of payments under the provisions of this
legislation. Indeed, it does not even men
tion cutting off any kind of payments. It
merely permits the Secretary of HEW
to establish procedures. Those proce
dures will be established in communIca
tion with the banks themselves.

So I think it provides, once again, flex
ibility. If we have confidence in·the Sec
retary of HEW, as I certainly do in this
matter and a number of others, I think
we can meet the objectives which face us,
and which were so well stated by Sena
tors COOK, MONDALE, and EAGLETON,
without imposing any kind of serious
hardship or handicap on the bankers.

Finally, I should like to read into the
RECORD a telegram which was received by
the Senator from Texas (Mr. YAR
BOROUGH) from Mr. Richard Sullivan,
president of the Association of American
Colleges:

On behalf of 900 colleges, I urge you to
hold firm on increased authorIzations for
student assistance programs and resist all
amendments which would permit banks to
discriminate among potential loan re
cipients.

It is these loan recipients to which this
amendment is directed. I think having
this kind of communication from the
president representing 900 American col
leges of this country is extremely sig
nificant, important, and helpfUl to Mem
bers of the Senate.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I yield
myself 1 minute.

The Senator from Massachusetts re
fers to the key point, as have I and the
Senator from Vermont; that is, whether
we are going to provide more opportu
nity for more people to provide more
money for more students. If we leave his
provision as it is in the bill, we run an
unnecessary risk of not accomplishing
that. '

Keep in mind that this is an emer
gency measure. It expires on JulY'l, 1970,
regardless of what happens. I s\1pport a
longer authorization, but the cOfnmittee
held it to 1 year. I am willing to go along
because we are going to have full hear
ings on higher education in October, as
I understand the Senator from Rhode
Island. So there is plenty of time to go
into a long-range program. But to add
this rider in an emergency bill, when
students need money right now, and to
increase the apprehension that lending
institutions now have regarding the stu
dent loan guarantee program, harms the
students without doing any good as far
as the program is concerned.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I yield my
self 1 minute on the bill.

In committee, we considered the point
raised by the senator from Colorado. I
realize he would have preferred to have
had a longer period. However, we viewed
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WORK OF SUBCOMMITTEE ON
ORGANIZED CRIME

Mr. McCLELLAN. Mr. President, the
Special subcommittee on Criminal Laws
and Procedures, which I am privileged
to chair, is currently in the process of
studying, revising, and evaluating sev
eral pieces of proposed legislation which

Murphy
Percy
Prouty
Scott
Stevens
Tower
Young, N. Dak.

Bible
Dole
Gore

Aiken
Allen
Anderson
Baker
Bayh
Bennett
Boggs
Brooke
Burdick
Byrd, Va.
Byrd, W. Va.
Cannon
Case
Church
Cook
Cooper
Cranston
Dodd
Eagleton
Eastland
Ellender
Ervin
Fong
Fulbright

Allott
Bellmon
Cotton
Curtis
Dirksen
Dominick
Fannin

So Mr.
rejected.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I move to
reconsider the vote by which the amend
ment was rejected.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I move
to lay that motion on the table.

The motion to lay on the table was
agreed to.

Mr. PELL. Mr. President, I yield 5
minutes to the Senator from Arkansas.

Senator from Colorado. The yeas and
nays have been ordered, and the clerk
will call the roll.

The assistant legislative clerk called
the roll.

Mr. KENNEDY. I announce that the
Senator from Tennessee (Mr. GORE) is
absent on official business.

I also announce that the Senator from
Nevada (Mr. BIBLE), the Senator from
Louisiana (Mr. LONG), the Senator from
Maryland (Mr. TYDINGS), and the Sena
tor from Texas (Mr. YARBOROUGH) are
necessarily absent.

I further announce that, if present
and voting, the Senator from Maryland
(Mr. TYDINGS) and the Senator from
Texas (Mr. YARBOROUGH) would each
vote "nay."

Mr. SCOTT. I announce that the Sen
ator from Ohio (Mr. SAXBE) is neces
sarily absent.

The Senator from Kansas (Mr. DOLE)
is detained on official business and, if
present and voting, would vote "yea."

The result was announced-yeas 21,
nays 72, as follows:

(No. 76 Leg.)
YEA8-21

Goldwater
Gurney
Hansen
Hruska
Javits
Jordan, Idaho
Mundt

NAYS-72
Goodell Mondale
Gravel Montoya
Griffin Moss
Harris Muskie
Hart Nelson
Hartke Packwood
Hatfield Pastore
Holland Pearson
Hollings Pell
Hughes Proxmire
Inouye Randolph
Jackson Rlbicolf
Jordan, N.C. Russell
Kennedy Schweiker
Magnuson Smith
Mansfield Sparkman
Mathias Spong
McCarthy Stennis
McC'lellan Symington
McGee Talmadge
McGovern Thurmond
McIntyre Williams, N.J.
Metcalf Williams, Del.
Miller Young, Ohio

NOT VOTING-7
Long Yarborough
Saxbe
Tydings

DOMINICK'S amendment was

and universities. We have not provided
enough money for Education opportunity
Grants or for the work-study program. These
two programs are specially designed to help
stUdents from low income families. Direct
Federal support is not available at all under
the National Defense Education Act for those
attending vocational or proprietary schools.
The Guaranteed Student Loan Program is
the only source of Federal assistance to stu
dents attending vocational or proprietary
schools.

The Committee on Labor and Public Wel
fare amended this bill in committee to in
crease the monetary support for all the stu
dent aid programs. We amended the bill to
increase the authorization for Nationai De
fense student loans for fiscal year 1970 from
$275 million to $325 million, an increase of
$50 million, and from $300 million to $375
million for fiscal year 1971, an increment
of $75 million.

The Committee bill also raises authorized
amounts for Educational Opportunity Grants
from $100 million to $150 million for FY
1970 and from $140 million to $200 million
for FY 1971. Work-stUdy funds will be raised
from $250 million to $275 million for FY
1970 and from $285 million to $320 million
for FY 1971.

The reason why there is this great pinch
in guaranteed student loan money is that we
have not in the past vot·ed enough money for
Federal student aid programs, and the fi
nancial incentivell to the lending institu
tions are just not sufficient to produce
enough student assistance to adequately do
the job under the Guaranteed StUdent Loan
Programs. The effort to transfer part of stu
dent assistance to commercial institutions
cannot be a long-range SUbstitute for direct
Federal support.

We heard over and over again In the hear
ings and in Committee that the Guaranteed
StUdent Loan Programs ill, after all, only
voluntary with the banks, and if we impose
any conditions upon them, they will not
make student loans at all. This really means
that students seeking an education are at
the mercy of the banks and of financial con
ditions that should not have any bearing
on the right to go to school.

We have prOVided in the Committee
amendments that this emergency Induce
ment extend for only 1 year. We shOUld use
that year to develop a long-range stUdent
aid llystem. College enrollments in junior
colleges, colleges, and universities have
doubled in the last 10 years to 7.8 million.
Within 10 years, enrollments are expected to
reach over 10 million students.

There is a national interest in making sure
that these young people have the financial
help they need to attend educational or
vocational institutions. We cannot turn the
responsibility over to the banks, and ask
them to meet it voluntarily, hoping they
will, but haVing no allsurance they will.

The whole matter of sources of student
aid requires the attention of Congress dur
ing the year while this stop-gap program is
in effect. But, in the meantime, Mr. Presi
dent, I strongly support and urge the im
mediate passage of S. 2721, the Guaranteed
Student Loan Program Act, because unless
this bill Is pasl;ed forthWith, 150,000 to 200,
000 students may not be able to attend
college this fall. Time is of the essence. We
cannot afford to deprive these young people
of this source of financial support, and thus
their opportunity for higher education this
year. Nor can America afford to lose the long
term benefits it will receive from those
young people being financially able to take
advantage of thill opportunity.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I yield
back ll1Y time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. All time
has been yielded back. The question is
on agreeing to the amendment of the

this as an emergency measure. Some of
us, including myself, have more substan
tive bills, having different approaches for
the permanent, or at least longer term,
methods of providing assistance for stu
dents in colleges. For that reason, we
fixed the period at 1 year.

Mr. President, I am prepared to vote.
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, the

senior Senator from Texas (Mr. YAR
BOROUGH), the able and distinguished
chairman of the Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare, is absent from the
Senate by neces.sity. In anticipation,
however, that this measure would be con
sidered in his absence, he left with me
an outstanding statement in behalf of
student assistance and in behalf of the
bill nl.'W before the Senate. I ask unan
mous t:t>nsent that Senator YARBOROUGH'S
statement be printed in the RECORD.

There being no objection, the state
ment was ordered to be printed in the
RECORD, as' follows:

CONGRESS MUST PLAN Now FOR IMPROVED
STUDENT ASSISTANCE

Mr. YARBOROUGH. Mr. President, there have
been pleas to us in recent weeks from par
ents, students, schools and banks to act
immediately to restore the workability of the
guaranteed student loan program. With the
amendments for which I voted in the Edu
cation Subcommittee and the Full Commit
tee on Labor and Public Welfare, I believe
this bill meets that immediate need.

The guaranteed student loan program was
intended to spread to-banks and other lend
ing institutions part of the burden of financ
ing tuition and other student costs of edu
cation. The Federal Government guarantees
repayment of the loan, and the Interest on it
until the student finishes school. Thereafter,
it is up to the student to assume full pay
ment of interest and repayment of the loan,
except that the Federal government stands
behind the ultimate repayment.

Estimates presented to the Education
Subcommittee were that in fiscal year 1969,
750,000 students attended college or business
school with the help of a guaranteed loan.
This year the condition of the money market
has changed. Competition for loans is so
great that the 7% ceiling on interest for
guaranteed student loans is lower than can
be received from borrowers generally. Banks
are turning away student applicants, or im
posing preferences and priorities for cus
tomers of the banks. Testimony shows that
between 150,000 and 200,000 student appli
cations would be denied this year, unless
some increase in return to the lending agen
cies is authorized.

At present, the student does not pay in
terest on his loan while in school. The fed
eral government pays interest up to a. ceillng
of 7%. The pending bill will authorize the
federal government to pay an additional 3 %
Interest while market conditions require the
additional return in order for students to
be able to obtain loans. We have amended
the blll before us in Committee to prevent
participating institutions from imposing re
quirements upon student applicants that
they or their parents be customers of the
bank, or conduct any other business with
the bank.

But we have also taken into account the
difficulty all stUdents are having in obtain
ing financial aid to attend school. Student
assistance for all levels of family income
is in short suppy. In 1958, in the National
Defense Education Act, we created the Na
tional Defense StUdent Loan Fund. But we
have not appropriated enough money for
It or enlarged it enough to provide adequate
loan funds for the increased number of
young people seeking admission to colleges


